# WORLD TRADE

**ORGANIZATION** 

RESTRICTED
WT/ACC/807/23
17 April 2002

(02-2114)

Working Party on the Accession of the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia

Original: English

# ACCESSION OF THE FORMER YUGOSLAV REPUBLIC OF MACEDONIA

# Additional Questions and Replies

The Government of the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia has submitted the following replies to additional questions raised by Members.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

11.	ECONOMY, ECONOMIC POLICIES AND FOREIGN TRADE	1
2.	Economic Policies	1
(a)	Main directions	1
<b>(b)</b>	Monetary and fiscal policies	2
IV.	POLICIES AFFECTING TRADE IN GOODS	5
1.	Import Regulation	5
(a)	Registration requirements for engaging in importing	5
<b>(b)</b>	Characteristics of national tariff	6
(d)	Other duties and charges	7
(e)	Quantitative import restrictions, including prohibitions, quotas and licensing systems	8
<b>(f)</b>	Import licensing procedures	8
(h)	Customs valuation	15
<b>(l)</b>	Rules of origin	16
(m)	Anti-dumping regime	17
2.	Export Regulation	17
(d)	Export licensing procedures	17
<b>(f)</b>	Export financing, subsidy and promotion policies	17
3.	Internal policies affecting foreign trade in goods	19
<b>(b)</b>	Technical regulations and standards	19
(c)	Sanitary and phytosanitary measures	22
(e)	State-trading practices	23
4.	Policies affecting foreign trade in agricultural products	24
v.	TRADE-RELATED INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY REGIME	24
1.	General	24
2.	Substantive standards of protection	25
(a)	Copyright and related rights	25
(c)	Geographical indications, including appellations of origin	25
(e)	Patents	26
(g)	Layout designs of integrated circuits	27
(h)	Requirements on undisclosed information, including trade secrets and test data	28
4.	Enforcement	29
VI.	TRADE-RELATED SERVICES REGIME	32
1.	General	32
2.	Policies affecting Trade in Services	36

VII.	INSTITUTIONAL BASE FOR TRADE AND ECONOMIC RELATIONS WITH THIRD COUNTRIES	36
2.	Economic integration, customs unions and free-trade area agreements	36
ATTA	ACHMENT 1	41
ATTA	ACHMENT 2	42
ATTA	ACHMENT 3	47
ATTA	ACHMENT 4	62
ATTA	ACHMENT 5	63
ATTA	ACHMENT 6	65
ATTA	ACHMENT 7	66
ATTA	ACHMENT 8	73
ATTA	ACHMENT 9	78
ATTA	ACHMENT 10	86
ATT	ACHMENT 11	88

# II. ECONOMY, ECONOMIC POLICIES AND FOREIGN TRADE

- 2. Economic Policies
- (a) Main directions

# **Question 1**

Macedonia is requested to accept the following commitment concerning the provision of future information on its privatization process:

The representative of Macedonia confirmed the readiness of Macedonia to ensure the transparency of its ongoing privatization program and to keep WTO Members informed of its progress in the reform of its transforming economic and trade regime. He stated that his Government would provide annual reports to WTO Members on developments in its program of privatization as long as the privatization programmed would be in existence along the lines of that provided to the Working Party. He also stated that his Government would provide annual reports on other issues related to its economic reforms as relevant to its obligations under the WTO.

#### Answer:

Macedonia agrees to accept the above commitment.

# **Question 2**

Macedonia should prepare a table to be included in the factual summary that lists products and services subject to price control with their HS and services category numbers.

# Answer:

The requested table will be prepared and included in the Factual Summary.

# **Question 3**

Explain the relationship, if any, that may exist between price control measures and export licensing in relation to products listed in WT/ACC/807/21.

## Answer:

There is no relation between the price control measures and the export licensing. These are two separate measures.

#### **Question 4**

May restrictions on exportation implemented by means of export licensing be used to achieve price control objectives? Are they used?

#### Answer:

No. See the answer to Question 3 above.

How will Macedonia ensure compliance with the requirements of GATT Article III:9 after accession?

#### Answer:

See the answer to Question 6 below.

# **Ouestion 6**

Macedonia is requested to accept the following commitment concerning the application of its price controls after accession:

The representative of Macedonia stated that in the application of price controls now or in the future, Macedonia would apply such measures in a WTO consistent fashion, and take account of the interests of exporting WTO Members as provided for in Article III:9 of the GATT 1994. Macedonia would publish the list of goods and services subject to state controls and any that are introduced or re-introduced in the future in its Official Gazette. The Working Party took note of this commitment.

#### Answer:

Macedonia agrees to accept the above commitment.

- (b) Monetary and fiscal policies
  - (iii) Sales Tax on Goods

# **Question 7**

How does Macedonia intend to bring its excise taxation regime into line with WTO requirements, in particular with Article III of the GATT 1994?

#### Answer:

The Ministry of Finance has prepared an action plan on the equalization of excise taxes for domestic and imported tobacco products. It encompasses equalization of excise taxes on tobacco products by 2005 and 2007.

The action plan is included as Attachment 1.

# **Question 8**

When will Macedonia equalize excise tax for imported and domestically produced tobacco products and thereby eliminate remaining inconsistencies in this area with the national treatment requirements of GATT Article III:2?

# Answer:

See the answer to Question 7 above.

Will Macedonia submit an English translation of the Government decision for equalization of excise taxes on domestic and imported tobacco and tobacco products referred to in Question 6 of WT/ACC/807/18?

#### Answer:

See the answer to question 7 above.

#### **Question 10**

Macedonia is requested to make a commitment that from the date of accession it will apply the value added tax in compliance with Article III of the GATT 1994, in a non-discriminatory manner to imports regardless of the country of origin and to domestically-produced goods.

#### Answer:

Macedonia agrees to accept the above commitment.

# **Question 11**

Do the exemptions from VAT listed in WT/ACC/807/18 also apply to all imported goods in the respective categories?

#### Answer:

Yes, the exemptions from VAT apply to both domestic and imported products and services.

# **Question 12**

Explain the meaning of the words "import taxes entitled to credit deduction" mentioned in paragraph 73 of the Factual Summary. Do the words "import taxes" mean VAT paid on the seller's purchases during the assessment period?

#### Answer:

The reference in this question to "import taxes..." mentioned in paragraph 73 of the Factual Summary is the result of an error. Paragraph 73 only contains reference to "input taxes entitled to credit deduction".

Nevertheless, input taxes are amounts for which the outstanding VAT amount for the supply made in the assessment period are deducted.

Tax credit represents:

- VAT for supply provided to the taxpayer by other taxpayers;
- VAT for payments made in advance by the taxpayer for supply, when such payments are still outstanding; and
- VAT paid for imports.

The right to deduction may be exercised only if following conditions are met:

- When the taxpayer who, within the scope of his business activity uses supplied or imported goods or services for the purpose of his business activity; and
- On the basis of an invoice or customs declaration in which the tax is stated separately.

Can Macedonia clarify whether VAT is imposed at the point of sale and collected by the sellers, where the sellers' VAT liability for the assessment period concerned is determined partly on the basis of total sales?

# Answer:

The VAT liability occurs at the moment of the supply of goods or at the moment of a complete delivery of the service.

When the payment is made prior to the supply of goods or the delivery of service, the VAT liability for the amount received takes place at the moment of the receipt of the payment.

With regard to imports, the VAT liability occurs simultaneously with the customs liability or, in the case of goods exempt from customs duty, at the moment of the entrance of goods into the country.

The VAT is calculated for a specific assessment period on the basis of the total turnover.

# **Question 14**

Can Macedonia confirm that rates of excise and VAT imposed on goods originating from any country that is party to its preferential trade agreements are no lower than those imposed on the same goods originating from any other country and that, accordingly, the MFN treatment requirements of GATT Article I:1 are met?

#### Answer:

Excise tax and VAT rates are identical for all imported goods regardless of the country of origin. The application of excise taxes and VAT in Macedonia is in full conformity with the MFN principle contained in Article I:1 of GATT 1994.

# **Question 15**

We seek a commitment from Macedonia to equalize excise taxes on imported and domestic tobacco and tobacco products prior to the date of accession.

## Answer:

See the answer to Question 16 below.

# **Question 16**

Macedonia is requested to make a standard commitment that from the date of accession, it will apply its domestic taxes, including those on products listed in the tables attached to its accession documents, in compliance with Article III of the GATT 1994, in a non-discriminatory manner to imports regardless of the country of origin and to domestically-produced goods.

Macedonia agrees to make the above commitment, with one exception. During the last Working Party meeting held on 7 December 2001, Macedonia requested a transition period for the equalization of excise taxes on tobacco products. This issue is still subject to negotiations.

See also the answer to Question 7 above.

# IV. POLICIES AFFECTING TRADE IN GOODS

- 1. Import Regulation
- (a) Registration requirements for engaging in importing

## **Question 17**

The penultimate paragraph on page 38 of WT/ACC/807/12 refers to Article 684 of the Macedonian Law on Trade Companies which states that: "In their operations on the territory of the Republic of Macedonia, foreign trade companies and foreign sole proprietors shall comply with the law and shall have a status equal with domestic persons and legal entities, unless otherwise determined by a government agreement or by law."

Will you explain the meaning of "government agreement"? Does this mean that the Government can, by its decision, diminish or increase the rights of foreign persons? If so, what are the cases in which such a possibility is envisaged? (This question also relates to the services regime.)

#### Answer:

The reference is to an international agreement made by the Government (e.g., a treaty or another type of an international agreement).

#### **Question 18**

Will Macedonia provide information about the other current laws referred to in Article 684 of the Law on Trade Companies? (This question also relates to the services regime.)

# Answer:

Article 684 of the Law on Trade Companies is a general provision which has the purpose of equating a foreign company registered in Macedonia to a domestic company. It also reiterates the usual general principle of a foreign company being required to comply with Macedonian law in the same manner as a domestic company.

#### **Ouestion 19**

Macedonia is requested to confirm in its accession documents that there is no state monopoly in foreign trade and that no restrictions exist on the rights of individuals and enterprises to import and export goods into Macedonia, except as provided in WTO Agreements, that individuals and firms can easily amend their registered scope of business to add the rights to import and export, that the criteria for registration are generally applicable and published in the Official Gazette, and that these requirements are not applied in a non-discriminatory manner towards imports.

Macedonia agrees to the inclusion of the above statement in its accession documents.

# **Question 20**

Macedonia is requested to make a commitment in its accession documents that from the date of accession it will ensure that its laws and regulations relating to the right to trade in goods and all fees, charges or taxes levied on such rights will fully conform with its WTO obligations, including Articles VIII:1(a). XI:1 and III:2 and 4 of the GATT 1994, and that it will implement such laws and regulations in full conformity with these obligations.

#### Answer:

Macedonia agrees to accept the above commitment.

#### (b) Characteristics of national tariff

# **Question 21**

Will Macedonia submit an update on Article 24a of the Customs Law which provides for tariff quotas on "goods that are not produced in the Republic of Macedonia, or the production of which does not cover the needs [of Macedonia]"?

Has this provision been eliminated in current legislation?

#### Answer:

Macedonia expects to repeal Article 24a of the Customs Law by June 2002. Amendments to the Customs Law will be submitted to the Working Party as soon as available.

# **Question 22**

#### Has the new Law on Customs Tariff been enacted and is it available for review?

#### Answer:

Macedonia amended its Law on Customs Tariff twice during the last year. In both cases, changes were introduced in the customs nomenclature, as well as in the level of tariff rates.

An English translation of the Customs Tariff with the first set of changes (Official Gazette 15/01) was submitted to the WTO Secretariat and then distributed to the members as WT/ACC/807/16 on 12 March 2001. These changes were also reflected in the last revision of the goods offer distributed to the Working Party members as WT/ACC/SPEC/807/2/Rev.1.

The second set of changes was introduced in December 2001 (Official Gazette 104/02) and it represents a full harmonization on six-digit level with the World Customs Organization nomenclature. Those changes are incorporated in the latest revision of the goods offer.

# (d) Other duties and charges

#### **Question 23**

Can Macedonia confirm that its 1 per cent fee on imports for customs evidential services will be abolished at the end of 2001, as indicated in the response to Question 22 of WT/ACC/807/18?

#### Answer:

The one per cent fee on imports for customs evidential services ceased to apply on 1 January 2002.

#### **Question 24**

Have any fees for customs services been established to replace the one per cent fee?

#### Answer:

According to the Regulation Governing the Amount of the Fee for Customs Services Rendered (Official Gazette 102/2001) the new fixed fee is EURO 19 for each ten-digit tariff entry on an import customs declaration. The fee is equivalent to the cost of the customs services rendered.

The regulation came into force on 1 January 2002. An English translation has been submitted to the WTO Secretariat.

# **Question 25**

Will Macedonia provide a status report on its plans for the 0.1 per cent export promotion fee applied to imports?

# Answer:

See the answer to question 27.

#### **Question 26**

Macedonia is requested to make a commitment that from the date of accession it will impose fees and charges for services rendered related to importation or exportation only in conformity with Article VIII of GATT 1994.

# Answer:

See the answer to Question 27.

# **Question 27**

Macedonia is requested to make a statement that "other duties and charges" as provided for in Article II:1(b) of the GATT 1994 will be bound at zero in its Schedule of Commitments on Goods.

## Answer:

Macedonia states that "other duties and charges" will be bound at zero in its Schedule of Commitments in Goods with the exception of the 0.1 per cent charge for export promotion. At the

Working Party meeting on 7 December 2001 Macedonia requested a three year transition period from the date of accession for the elimination of this charge.

# (e) Quantitative import restrictions, including prohibitions, quotas and licensing systems

#### **Question 28**

What are Macedonia's plans for the elimination of licensing requirements currently imposed as "protection of domestic production" for products listed in Table 4(a) of the factual summary?

#### Answer:

See the answer to Question 30 below.

# **Question 29**

Can Macedonia explain the security justification for the non-automatic licensing of precious metals and products of precious metals listed in Table 5 of the Factual Summary?

#### Answer:

As indicated in paragraph 78 of the Factual Summary and Title (iii) of the Explanatory Note on Import Licensing appearing in the Annex to WT/ACC/807/18, non-automatic import licenses for precious metals and products of precious metals are administered in accordance with Article XX(c) of the GATT 1994. The security justification mentioned in Table 5 of the Factual Summary was an unintentional error. The requested corrections will be made in the appropriate places.

#### (f) Import licensing procedures

# **Question 30**

The last paragraph on page 67 of WT/ACC/807/18 states:

"Macedonia is seriously re-examining its import licensing regime in the light of all current and future international commitments. Pursuant to the obligations set out in the Stabilization and Association Agreement with the European Union, Macedonia has abolished all quantitative restrictions for imports from the European Union market as of 1 June 2001. The Government of Macedonia plans to extend the same treatment to all WTO Members on MFN basis prior to its accession to the WTO."

Confirm that the "quantitative restrictions" referred to in this paragraph include the licensing regime operated under the Trade Law described in the attachments to WT/ACC/807/18.

## Answer:

The "quantitative restrictions" mentioned in the last paragraph on page 67 of WT/ACC/807/18 apply to products listed in Attachment 1 to the above document. Macedonia has already commenced to abolish such restrictions by a Government Decision issued on 18 December 2001. According to this Decision, licensing requirements were removed on 31 December 2001 for some of the products listed in Attachment 1 while for the remaining products they will be removed on 30 June 2002 and 31 December 2003 respectively.

An English translation of the Decision has been submitted to the WTO Secretariat. A detailed timetable for the abolition of licenses appears in Attachment 2.

# **Question 31**

Clarify Macedonia's intentions concerning all licensing requirements listed in the attachments to WT/ACC/807/18 in the context of the WTO accession requirements.

# Answer:

See the answer to Ouestion 30 above.

## **Question 32**

Will Macedonia submit an update on the status of revising the current licensing system vis-à-vis imports from countries other than the European Union?

#### Answer:

See the answer to Question 30 above.

#### **Question 33**

Will Macedonia submit an English translation of the government decision on the abolition of the non-automatic licenses?

#### Answer:

See the answer to Question 30 above.

#### **Question 34**

What are the criteria applied by the Minister of Economy when issuing non-automatic licenses for oil derivatives? Are they published?

## Answer:

The licensing requirements, as well as the procedures for the administration of licenses for oil derivatives, are described in the Explanatory Note on Import Licensing on page 67 of WT/ACC/807/18.

There are no published criteria.

# **Question 35**

Will Macedonia submit a list of all non-automatic import licenses for products falling into Heading 27.10 of the Customs Tariff issued from January 1998 to date?

#### Answer:

The specificity of the question, as well as the optional nature and extent of a possible answer, suggest that a more detailed elaboration of the question may be best achieved in bilateral discussions. Macedonia will welcome such discussions with interested members of the Working Party.

On what basis does Macedonia justify the licence requirement for the import of products listed in Attachment 5 to WT/ACC/807/18?

#### Answer:

As already described in the Explanatory Note on TBT in the Annex to WT/ACC/807/18, the basis for the licensing requirement relating to the products listed in Attachment 5 to WT/ACC/807/18 is consumer protection. The products in Attachment 5 are electrical appliances or machines. Consumers, when they acquire such products, should also be able to receive the necessary installation and user instructions, manufacturers guarantees, and repair information. Hence, in the strict sense of their content and character, the licenses are product licenses and not shipment importation licenses.

The licenses are issued for the respective models of the products to be placed on the market in Macedonia. Once issued, they are valid for an unlimited number of shipments of an unlimited quantity of the particular product for an unlimited period of time.

To obtain a licence it is necessary to submit to the Bureau for Standardization and Metrology samples of the manufacturer's certificate, guarantee, and instruction manual. The licence is issued immediately upon the receipt of such sample documents. Fees for the licenses are payable within a range of US\$50 - US\$195 depending on the complexity of the respective products and documents.

#### **Ouestion 37**

Are the licenses for the importation of products listed in Attachment 5 to WT/ACC/807/18 automatic?

# Answer:

The licenses for the products listed in Attachment 5 to WT/ACC/809/18 are issued automatically upon the receipt of the respective documents. Nevertheless within the strict meaning of the definitions in the Agreement on Import Licensing Procedures they may be regarded as non-automatic.

Yet the licensing requirement is widely publicized. It is transparent and reasonable. The application procedures are simple. The procedures for the issue of the licenses are fair and equitable. The licenses are issued promptly.

Furthermore, it needs to be noted that these are product licenses and not shipment importation licenses. In other words they constitute a generic requirement concerning the products themselves and not their importation.

# **Question 38**

Are the products listed in Attachment 5 to WT/ACC/807/18 subject to mandatory technical regulations?

# Answer:

Yes, as already stated in the Explanatory Note on TBT in the Annex to WT/CC/807/18, the licensing requirement for products listed in Attachment 5 to the above document is established by regulation.

Are import licenses for products listed in Attachment 5 to WT/ACC/807/18 issued on the basis of the manufacturers' certificates of conformity or are they subject to other certification and testing requirements?

#### Answer:

As explained in the answer to Question 36 above, the licenses are issued on the basis of manufacturers' certificates and manuals. There are no other requirements.

# **Question 40**

On what basis does Macedonia justify the licensing requirement for the importation of products listed in Attachments 6, 8, 9, 10 and 11 to WT/ACC/807/18?

#### Answer:

Macedonia offers the following justifications for the licensing requirements for products listed in Attachments 6, 8, 9, 10 and 11 to WT/ACC/807/18:

- Attachment 6 The Administration on Plant Protection administers licenses for registration of new pesticides prior to their initial release on the Macedonian market. It also administers the renewal of such licenses.
- Attachment 8 The Administration on Seeds and Seedling Materials administers licenses for:
  - Preservation of the quality of seeds, seedling materials and other reproduction materials of plant origin in conformity with the International Seeds Testing Association (ISTA).
  - Preservation of the identity of seeds, seedling materials and other reproduction materials of plant origin as prescribed by the International Organization on Post-Control Tests for the Examination of the Identity and the Purity of Varieties within the OECD.
  - Health of seeds, seedling materials and other reproduction materials of plant origin as prescribed by the International Plant Protection Convention (IPPC).
- Attachment 9 The Forestry Department applies licensing requirements for the control of health safety of seeds and seedlings for forestry plants imported into Macedonia.
- Attachment 10 The Veterinary Administration administers licenses to prevent importation of animals and products of animal origin containing contagious animal diseases.
- Attachment 11 The Ministry of Environment applies licensing requirements for:
  - Halogen derivatives of carbon hydrate, as well as used refrigerators and freezers reduction and elimination of substances that damage the ozone layer to comply with the international requirements of the Vienna Convention and the Montreal Protocol, as amended.

- Used and repaired tires, used wheels prevention of pollution and other environmental hazards caused by old tires due to the absence of adequate recycling facilities and limited waste disposal capacities.
- Asbestos and products containing asbestos reduction in the use of asbestos materials.

Used TV, radio and video sets, and monitors – prevention of unsafe and dangerous products from being used by the public, as well as reducing the risk of such products being abandoned in public places due to the lack of recycling and waste disposal capacities.

Products protected under the following international treaties:

- Convention on Biological Diversity (Rio)
- Convention on the Conservation of Migratory Species of Wild Animals (Bonn)
- Convention on the Conservation of the European Wildlife and Natural Habitats (Bern)
- Basel Convention on the Control of Cross Border Circulation of Hazard Waste and its Disposal
- 1998 Protocol for Persistent Organic Polluters

The information contained in Attachments 6, 8, 9, 10 and 11 to WT/ACC/807/18 has been revised. Updated information appears in Attachments 4, 5, 6, 7 and 9 to this document.

# **Question 41**

Are the licenses required for products listed in Attachments 6, 8, 9, 10 and 11 of WT/ACC/807/18 automatic?

# Answer:

The purpose of the procedures related to the products listed in Attachments 6, 8, 9 and 10 to WT/ACC/807/18 is the protection of human, animal and plant life and health. The requirements are based entirely on scientific principles, and they utilise international standards, guidelines and recommendations. The licenses represent a step in the control, inspection and approval procedures. They are issued forthwith upon the satisfactory completion of such procedures which are prompt and reasonable. In the strict sense of the term, as it is defined in the Agreement on Import Licensing Procedures, such procedures may be deemed non-automatic. But are they ever automatic?

Products listed in Attachment 11 to WT/ACC/807/18 require control, inspection and approval procedures for environmental protection reasons. Strictly speaking they fall within the TBT categories of conformity assessment requirements. Within the technical sense of the term they also may be deemed non-automatic.

# **Question 42**

Are the products listed in Attachments 6, 8, 9 10 and 11 to WT/ACC/807/18 subject to mandatory technical regulations?

# Answer:

Yes, the licensing requirements for products listed in Attachments 6, 8, 9, 10 and 11 to WT/ACC/807/18 are established by regulation.

English translations of the following relevant laws have been submitted to the Working Party:

- Law on Plant Protection (Official Gazette 25/98, 6/00);
- Law on Veterinary Health (Official Gazette 28/98);
- Law on Environment and Nature Protection and Promotion (Official Gazette 69/96, 13/99, 41/00, 51/00, 96/00);
- Law on Medicaments, Remedial Medicines and Medicine Devices (Official Gazette 21/98); and
- Law on Health Safety of Food Products and Articles for General Use (Official Gazette of SFRY 53/91).

# **Question 43**

Are import licenses for products listed in Attachments 6, 8, 9, 10 and 11 to WT/ACC/807/18 available on the basis of manufacturers' certificates of conformity or are they subject to other certification and testing requirements?

#### Answer:

The controls applicable to the products listed in Attachments 6, 8, 9, 10 and 11 have as their purposes the protection of human, animal and plant life and health, or the protection of the environment. The documentary and other procedural requirements relating to such controls are determined by multilateral, regional and bilateral international agreements. It is these agreements that determine whether manufacturing certificates suffice for control, inspection and approval purposes. In this respect, Macedonia follows international standards, guidelines and recommendations. For full description of the licensing procedures, see the Explanatory Notes on SPS and TBT in the Annex to WT/ACC/807/18.

# **Question 44**

Will Macedonia explain the SPS justification for the import licenses for products listed in Attachment 11 to WT/ACC/807/18.

# Answer:

The reference to the SPS Agreement for products listed in Attachment 11 was made in error. The particular requirements refer to environmental protection and have a direct bearing on the safety of health and life, but it is true that they do not address issues arising from the entry, establishment or spread of pests, diseases, contaminants or toxins. In view of the above question, they are being reclassified as TBT requirements.

The changes are reflected in an amended table which is included as Attachment 9 herein.

# **Ouestion 45**

What are the justifications for the import licensing requirements for pharmaceuticals listed in Attachment 12 of WT/ACC/807/18?

# Answer:

Medicaments, remedial medicines and medicine devices - To ensure that safe, harmless, effective and properly approved medicines are placed on the Macedonian market.

Narcotic substances and products thereof – To ensure control in the use of such products, and to maintain proper records of their use.

Poisons - To ensure that products of public hygiene containing poisonous substances do not constitute a danger to the public, and that they are properly described, labelled and classified.

#### **Question 46**

How are the import licenses for pharmaceuticals listed in Attachment 12 of WT/ACC/807/18 administered?

#### Answer:

Licence applications are filed prior to the importation, exportation and transit of pharmaceuticals. Application must be submitted in writing, in Macedonian language and Cyrillic letters on a special form that may be obtained at the Ministry of Health. It need not be notarized.

Each application must be accompanied by the following supporting documentation: evidence that the respective trader is authorized to trade with pharmaceuticals, copy of the invoice and evidence of the payment of the administrative fee. Administrative fee of 200 MDen is payable.

The decision is made by the Minister of Health within thirty days of the day of submission of the application. The applicant is informed about the decision in writing. Appeal may be filed with the Second Instance Committee in the Ministry of Health.

A licence is valid for a specific shipment only.

For further information, see the Explanatory Note on SPS in the Annex to WT/ACC/807/18.

# **Question 47**

Could Macedonia elaborate on the basis for issuing import licenses for products assessed as meeting Macedonia's technical regulations or standards, including its sanitary and phytosanitary requirements?

# Answer:

See the answers to Questions 36, 40, 44 and 45.

#### **Ouestion 48**

Macedonia is requested to make an assurance that there will be no import licence restrictions on goods which meet Macedonian technical regulations and/or standards, including SPS requirements.

#### Answer:

Yes, Macedonia is willing to give such an assurance.

# **Question 49**

Do the new laws on SPS and TBT in preparation by Macedonia take full account of the requirements of the WTO agreements, with a view to the simplification and improvement of the current system in conformity with the WTO requirements?

The relevant draft laws have been submitted to the WTO Secretariat.

# **Question 50**

Are the import licence fees based on product unit prices (paragraph 80 of the factual summary) consistent with Article VIII of GATT 1994, which requires such charges to be related to the approximate cost of the services rendered and not to the value of goods?

#### Answer:

The amount of a licence fee is based on the product price as the best and the most convenient measure of the complexity of document and product examination. The lowest fee is US\$50 and the highest is US\$195. The licence is issued for a particular product. It applies to all shipments of that product and is valid for an indefinite period of time. The fee is consistent with Article VIII of GATT 1994.

The scale of fees is published in the Official Gazette 38/90.

# **Question 51**

Will Macedonia provide an action plan with a detailed timetable indicating how and when it intends to remove its non-automatic licensing restrictions for imports, and submit it together with appropriate WTO justifications for any remaining requirements?

#### Answer:

See the answer to Question 30.

# **Question 52**

Will Macedonia report on its plans for the elimination of import licenses or on bringing its import licensing system fully into line with the WTO requirements, and not use it as a means for the protection of industrial and agricultural enterprises in their progress towards market economy operations?

#### Answer:

See the answer to Question 30.

#### (h) Customs valuation

# **Question 53**

Macedonia has already submitted a document (Attachment 3 to WT/ACC/807/18) which indicates the compliance of its legislation with the Customs Valuation Agreement. Will Macedonia rearrange this document in the numerical sequence of its own legislation to be shown in the first column and the relevant provisions of the Customs Valuation Agreement in the second column?

As indicated in WT/ACC/807/17/Rev.1, Macedonia is currently amending its Customs Law to put it in compliance with the Agreement on Implementation of Article VII of GATT 1994, including the Interpretative Notes. The process is expected to be completed by June 2002. For this reason, Macedonia requests that the preparation of the compliance table be postponed until that time.

# **Question 54**

Macedonia is requested to make a commitment that it will fully apply the WTO provisions concerning customs valuation from the date of accession without recourse to a transition period, including the Agreement on the Implementation of Article VII of the GATT 1994 and Annex I (Interpretative Note) as well as the provisions for the Valuation of Carrier Media Bearing Software for Data Processing Equipment (Decision 4.1).

#### Answer:

Macedonia agrees to accept the above commitment.

# (l) Rules of origin

#### **Question 55**

Will Macedonia indicate when it will incorporate the provisions of Article 2(h) and Annex II, Paragraph 3(d) of the Agreement on Rules of Origin in its legislation?

## Answer:

As indicated in WT/ACC/807/17/Rev.1, Macedonia is currently amending its Customs Law to put it in compliance with the Agreement on Rules of Origin. The process is expected to complete by June 2002.

# **Question 56**

Will Macedonia submit the promised revised rules of origin which include the provisions of Article 2(h) and Annex II, Paragraph 3(d) of the Agreement on Rules of Origin both for preferential and non-preferential trade?

# Answer:

Legislation containing revised rules of origin will be submitted immediately upon enactment.

See the answer to Question 55 above.

# **Question 57**

Macedonia is requested to confirm the commitment made in the answer to Question 39 of WT/ACC/807/18 to incorporate the provisions of the Agreement on Rules of Origin in its legal regime, in particular the provisions of Article 2(h) and Annex II, Paragraph 3(d) in Macedonia's accession documents.

#### Answer:

Macedonia confirms the above commitment.

# (m) Anti-dumping regime

#### **Question 58**

Inform the Working Party on the progress in preparing a new Law on Trade that will provide for WTO-consistent application of anti-dumping and countervailing duties and safeguards measures on imports, as indicated in WT/ACC/807/18.

#### Answer:

New legislation is being drafted. Within a very near future, when the draft text is finalized, it will be submitted to the Working Party for comments.

The intention is to introduce in Macedonia legislation fully consistent with the Agreement on the Implementation of Article VI of GATT 1994, the Agreement on Subsidies and Countervailing Measures.

#### **Ouestion 59**

Macedonia is requested to make a commitment that it will not apply any anti-dumping, countervailing or safeguard measure to imports from WTO Members until it has implemented laws in conformity with the WTO Agreements on the Implementation of Article VI, on Subsidies and Countervailing Measures and on Safeguards and has notified these measures to the WTO.

#### Answer:

Macedonia agrees to accept the above commitment.

# 2. Export Regulation

# (d) Export licensing procedures

# **Question 60**

Will Macedonia provide a table listing, in one column, all of the products that are subject to export approval for strategic reasons and, in adjacent columns, details of: (1) the specific objective of export control in relation to the product concerned, (2) the WTO justification, and (3) references to the relevant legal instruments?

# Answer:

If by "strategic" the Working Party means security and defense, such table is included as Attachment 11.

# (f) Export financing, subsidy and promotion policies

# **Question 61**

The Macedonian Law on Free Economic Zones includes a prohibited export subsidy (paragraph 125 of the Factual Summary). What action does Macedonia propose to take in order to bring the law in conformity with the WTO requirements?

At its session held on 23 January 2002, the Macedonian Parliament repealed paragraph 1 of Article 25 of the Law on Free Economic Zones which the Working Party members deemed to create a prohibited export subsidy. This repeal puts the free economic zones regime in compliance with the provisions of the Agreement on Subsidies and Countervailing Measures.

The amendments were published in Official Gazette 6/01. English translation was submitted to the WTO Secretariat.

#### **Ouestion 62**

Macedonia's response to Question 43 of WT/ACC/807/18 is inadequate. Articles 3, 15, 16, 25 and 26 of the Law on Free Economic Zones clearly link the right of establishment in the zone and access to the tax exemptions and incentives provided to exporting a minimum of 51 per cent of the value of the goods manufactured and the services provided in the free zone the first year, rising to 70 per cent by the third year and thereafter. Tax exemptions and incentives include exemption from tariffs and sales (VAT) taxes, from profit and property taxes for ten years, and from normal utility charges. Also Article 34 appears to state that normal standards and price controls administered in the rest of Macedonia do not apply to goods imported to or exported from the zones.

As these exemptions and incentives are conditioned on export performance, Macedonia's current free economic zone regime constitutes a prohibited subsidy within the terms of Article 3 of the WTO Agreement on Subsidies and Countervailing Measures.

Macedonia is requested to eliminate the subsidy element as soon as possible, and prior to its accession to the WTO.

#### Answer:

See the answer to Question 55 above.

#### **Ouestion 63**

Macedonia is requested to confirm in its accession documents that from the date of accession it will not maintain subsidies, including export subsidies, which meet the definition of a prohibited subsidy within the meaning of Article 3 of the Agreement on Subsidies and Countervailing Measures and that it would not introduce such prohibited subsidies in the future.

#### Answer:

Macedonia agrees to include the above statement in its accession documents.

# **Ouestion 64**

Macedonia is requested to confirm in its accession documents that any subsidy program in existence in Macedonia after accession will be administered in accordance with the Agreement on Subsidies and Countervailing Measures and that all necessary information on programs to be notified, if such exist, would be provided to the Committee on Subsidies and Countervailing Measures in accordance with Article 25 of the Agreement upon the entry into force of Macedonia's Protocol of Accession.

Macedonia agrees to include the above statement in its accession documents.

- **3. Internal policies affecting foreign trade in goods**Error! Bookmark not defined.
- (b) Technical regulations and standards

# **Question 65**

Will Macedonia fully implement the WTO TBT Agreement from the date of accession, as indicated in the factual summary?

# Answer:

Yes.

#### **Question 66**

Will Macedonia advise on its intentions to establish arrangements for the development and application of technical regulations and standards consistent with the relevant internationally agreed standards, and also its intention to establish arrangements for conformity assessments?

# Answer:

Yes, Macedonia intends to establish arrangements for the development and application of technical regulations and standards consistent with the relevant internationally agreed standards. It also intends to make all necessary arrangements for the appropriate conformity assessments. In fact, Macedonia already substantially complies with such requirements.

# **Question 67**

Will Macedonia explain the basis for the assessment of the present arrangements concerning electrical appliances (mentioned in paragraph 80 of the factual summary)?

#### Answer:

See the answer to Question 36 above.

#### **Question 68**

Does Macedonia accept foreign certification/conformity assessment documents for any of the technical regulations being applied to products listed in Attachment 5 to WT/ACC/807/18?

#### Answer:

Yes. For details, see the answer to Question 36 above.

#### **Question 69**

If Macedonia accepts foreign certification/conformity assessment documents for any of the technical regulations being applied to products listed in Attachment 5 to WT/ACC/807/18, are the licensing requirements still applicable for the acceptance of foreign certification/conformity assessment documents?

The licensing requirements are fully described in the answer to Question 36 above (and in Explanatory Note on TBT of the Annex to WT/ACC/807/18).

#### **Question 70**

Are any of the licensing requirements applied to products listed in Attachment 5 to WT/ACC/807/18 to ensure that the products meet certain quality standards (other than health, safety, metrological or environmental reasons)?

# Answer:

See the answer to Question 36 above.

# **Question 71**

Macedonia is requested to confirm that the conformity assessment procedures will ensure the protection of legitimate commercial interests (in accordance with TBT Articles 5.2.3 and 5.2.4).

# Answer:

The current conformity assessment procedures in Macedonia are reasonable and limited in all respects (for an in-depth description of the procedures, see the Explanatory Note on TBT in the Annex to WT/ACC/807/18).

In particular, Macedonia confirms that its conformity assessment procedures comply with the requirements of Article 5.2.3 and 5.2.4 of the Agreement on Technical Barriers to Trade:

- The information requirements are limited to what is necessary to assess conformity and to determine fees; and
- The confidentiality of information is respected in the manner required in Article 5.2.4 of the above agreement.

# **Question 72**

Explain more clearly the comment in the last sentence of paragraph 108 of the factual summary regarding current testing procedures as objectives for the improvement of quality in domestic production.

# Answer:

There is no direct textual connection between "testing procedures" and the improvement of quality in domestic production in the last sentence of paragraph 108 of the Factual Summary.

The sentence is compound.

What was intended to be said is that testing procedures are virtually non-existent in Macedonia, and that their introduction is seriously hampered by the lack of resources and personnel due to the present economic conditions of the country. There is a serious concern that goods produced locally are qualitatively inadequate. Since there are no testing systems in place, the best that can be done is to convince the industry that it should introduce better or more reliable production methods.

There is some hope that such an inducement may come from potential foreign customers interested to import Macedonian goods into their countries. There is a great need for international help.

# **Question 73**

Will Macedonia advise on the timing of the enactment of the proposed new legislation mentioned in paragraph 112 of the factual summary?

# Answer:

The drafts of the Law on Standardization, the Law on Metrology, the Law on Accreditation and the Law on Technical Requirements of Products and Conformity Assessment are intended to be enacted by April 2002.

# **Question 74**

Macedonia is reminded that it is not sufficient to presume that standards/directives of other countries are based on international standards or are necessarily TBT consistent, and that all acceding countries must have a system in place (as required by the Agreement) that can respond to Members' concerns when Macedonia applies what some Members see as WTO inconsistent standards/technical regulations.

In this regard, what is Macedonia doing to ensure that it can notify when required to do so by the Agreement (i.e., when will an enquiry point be set up and how will it operate to ensure proper notification)?

#### Answer:

Macedonia has established an enquiry point and has notified the WTO accordingly.

The information concerning the enquiry point is as follows:

Bureau for Standardization and Metrology Samoilova 10 1000 Skopje Republic of Macedonia

Telephone: ++ 389 2 298-115 Fax: ++ 389 2 110-263

E-mail: <u>zsm@zsm.gov.mk</u>

grkov.zoran@zsm.gov.mk

Notifications will be prepared and submitted in accordance with the procedures prescribed in the Agreement on Technical Barriers to Trade. The respective Macedonian officials are receiving continuing training by invitation in other countries.

#### **Question 75**

Is there a policy that provides further guidance on how Macedonia will respond to and take into account comments on draft regulations (as provided for in its Law on Standardization)?

In practice the Bureau for Standardization and Metrology consults the industry and business sectors on all proposals, drafts or projects concerning the development of either standards or technical regulations relating to goods. In view of the size of the country this is easily accomplished. The Bureau for Standardization and Metrology cooperates with the industry and business sectors on a regular basis. Of course, no draft regulations are in existence currently due to the economic conditions in the country.

# (c) Sanitary and phytosanitary measures

# **Question 76**

Will Macedonia submit the additional SPS legislation it is developing to ensure that it meets WTO requirements?

#### Answer:

Macedonia continues to develop new legislation that is WTO consistent. As drafts of the legislation become available, they will be submitted to the Working Party for review. To date, Macedonia has submitted for comments the draft Law on Food Safety (WT/ACC/807/20).

It is, however, relevant to point out that the existing Macedonian legislation follows international requirements and applies international standards. It is consistent with the SPS Agreement.

# **Question 77**

Provide a list of new SPS laws and regulations, detailing their content and providing the timing for their enactment. (We will not be able to finalize our comments until we have had the opportunity for this review.)

#### Answer:

No new legislation has been drafted so far.

Attachment 10 contains a list of legislation on plant protection projected to be drafted at some time in the future.

An English translation of the draft Law on Food Safety has already been submitted to the Working Party.

# **Question 78**

Will Macedonia report on the work underway to establish a WTO consistent SPS regime?

#### Answer:

See the answers to Questions 40, 41 and 76 (and the Explanatory Note on SPS in the Annex to WT/ACC/807/18).

Will Macedonia submit a detailed explanation of the role played by the Ministry of Environment in the administration of its SPS measures (paragraph 114 of the factual summary)? What SPS measures is the Ministry of Environment responsible for administering and what is the nature of its role?

# Answer:

See the answer to Ouestion 44.

# **Question 80**

What is the WTO justification for the Ministry of Environment applying SPS measures and what is the justification for applying them to particular products?

#### Answer:

See the answers to Questions 40 and 44 above.

# **Question 81**

When will an operational SPS enquiry point be established (paragraph 118 of the factual summary) and when will the information about the enquiry point be submitted?

#### Answer:

As required by Article 7 and Annex B to the SPS Agreement, two operational SPS enquiry points have been established: one within the Ministry of Health responsible for providing information on food safety and another within the Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Water Economy responsible for providing information on issues relevant for the health and life of animals and plants. Information about these two bodies were submitted to the WTO Secretariat for circulation among members.

# (e) State-trading practices

# **Question 82**

What is the relationship of Macedonia's stock reserves to the purchase of agricultural goods covered by protective prices?

#### Answer:

The Directorate for Stock Reserves purchases surpluses of agricultural products at protective prices pursuant to the provisions of the Law on Stock Reserves.

The Directorate for Stock Reserves purchases agricultural products at protective prices only in cases when they have not been bought out by commercial entities and it threatens to cause serious disturbances on the market.

The buyout is regulated by a Government decision which determines the product, the protective price and the quantities.

Did the Directorate for Stock Reserves participate in the buyout of wheat and tobacco, noted in the response to Question 109 of WT/ACC/807/12?

## Answer:

No, the Directorate did not participate in the buyout.

# **Question 84**

In Annex 6 to the document WT/ACC/807/5/Add.1 it is stated that the only entity in Macedonia which is covered by the provisions of Article XVII of the GATT 1994 is the Directorate for Stock Reserves.

We would like to know if there are other companies in Macedonia with exclusive trading rights or monopolistic position in imports, particularly in the light of the information provided during the last Working Party meeting on the international agreement with a particular foreign oiltrading company?

# Answer:

The terms of the international agreement with a foreign oil-trading company do not contain any elements falling within Article XVII of GATT 1994.

- 4. Policies affecting foreign trade in agricultural products
  - Agricultural Production

# **Question 85**

As Macedonia has stated that it has no export subsidies, it is requested to make a commitment that it will not establish any export subsidies upon its accession to the WTO.

#### Answer:

The application of export subsidies in agriculture is subject to ongoing negotiations on support in agriculture. Macedonia expects this issue to be resolved on the next plurilateral meeting planned for May 2002.

# V. TRADE-RELATED INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY REGIME

# 1. General

#### **Question 86**

Will Macedonia report on the status of the legislation in both the industrial property and the copyrights areas, as mentioned in WT/ACC/807/17?

#### Answer:

The new Law on Industrial Property has been submitted to the Parliament.

For the amendments to the Law on Copyright and Related Rights see the answer to Question 87 below.

# 2. Substantive standards of protection

# (a) Copyright and related rights

# **Question 87**

Further to the replies to Questions 111, 113 and 117 of document WT/ACC/807/18 in relation to copyright protection, Macedonia is requested to submit all new amendments to the Law of Copyright and Related Rights and/or the pertinent new regulations (if any).

# Answer:

Amendments to the Law on Copyright and Related Rights are being drafted in full conformity with TRIPS. The draft is expected to be translated into English and submitted for international consideration in the very near future.

# (c) Geographical indications, including appellations of origin

#### **Question 88**

Please confirm whether in the draft Law on Industrial Property a protection of a geographical name (geographical indication or appellation of origin) is only available once registered in accordance with Article 219 of that draft, and whether such protection will lapse if registration is not renewed pursuant to Article 227 of the draft.

#### Answer:

The registration of a geographical name is unlimited and is different from the registration of a right to use that geographical name.

The registration of the use of a geographical name takes place according to Article 219 of the draft Law on Industrial Property. According to Article 227 of the same draft, it is valid for five years when it can be renewed again. The number of renewals is unlimited.

# **Question 89**

Describe how additional protection is granted by legislation to wines and spirits including other types of products, if any, covered by this additional protection.

#### Answer:

There is no additional protection.

# **Question 90**

Please provide examples, if any, of the use by courts of the exceptions in Article 24 TRIPS by courts or lists of names considered generic in your jurisdiction.

# Answer:

There is no such use of exceptions or lists of names considered as generic.

# (e) PatentsError! Bookmark not defined.

#### **Question 91**

Please explain whether the exclusion of inventions from patentability based on ordre public or morality has been applied in practice and, if so, please provide details.

#### Answer:

There are no such cases in practice so far.

# **Question 92**

Please describe how micro-organisms, non-essentially biological processes, microbiological processes and plant varieties are protected in your legislation using the relevant sections of your legislation.

# Answer:

Microbiological processes and products as well as the inventions related to such products, in particular substances or compositions for use in surgical and diagnostic methods or methods for treatment of living human and animal bodies can be protected by patent.

Article 13 Paragraph 1 of the draft Law on Industrial Property states that a "Patent shall be granted for invention in all fields of technology which is new, involves inventive step, and is suitable for industrial application."

Exceptions to patentability are listed in paragraph 3 items 1 to 3 of Article 13:

"The following shall be excluded from protection by patent:

- inventions related to new animal species and plant varieties and essentially biological processes for production of animals or plants, except inventions relating to microbiological processes and products from such processes;
- inventions whose publishing or exploitation would be contrary to the public order or morality. Exploitation of invention shall not be deemed contrary to public order or morality only because it is prohibited by law or appropriate regulation;
- inventions for surgical and diagnostic methods or method for treatment of living human or animal body, except inventions relating to products, in particular substances or compositions for use in any of these methods".

#### **Ouestion 93**

Please state if your legislation provides for patent product protection of pharmaceutical and agricultural chemical products and if so, indicate the legal reference.

Article 56 paragraph 2 of the draft Law on Industrial Property states: "The validity of a patent may be extended to more than 20 years if the subject matter of the patent is a medical product or a product for protection of plants or process for their production, which has to undergo an administrative procedure for authorization required by law before it can be put on the market, for the duration of such administrative procedure, but not more than five years."

# **Question 94**

Please explain how your legislation explicitly ensures that a proposed user has made efforts to obtain authorization from the right holder on reasonable commercial terms and conditions and that such efforts have not been successful within a reasonable period of time. In this context, how do you define "reasonable period of time"?

#### Answer:

There are no such provisions in Macedonian legislation.

# **Question 95**

Please answer whether a compulsory licence is assignable or not.

#### Answer:

Compulsory licence is non-assignable.

# (g) Layout designs of integrated circuits

# **Question 96**

Please describe how your legislation protects topographies.

# Answer:

Article 7 of the Law on Protection of Topographies of Integrated Circuits (Official Gazette 5/98) establishes a register for topographies. Article 10 of this law states that upon registration a topography becomes protected. Article 12 of the same law provides that the procedure for registration begins with the filing of an application.

#### **Ouestion 97**

Please explain what protection your national legislation grants to right holders against the unlawful importation, sale or distribution for commercial purposes of topographies including integrated circuits or other articles in which a topography is incorporated in accordance with Article 36 of TRIPS.

# Answer:

According to Article 9 of the Law on Protection of Topographies of Integrated Circuits, the holder of a protected topography is granted an exclusive right of commercial exploitation, including the right to authorize or prohibit any of the following acts:

- reproduction of the topography by any means or in any form; and

 importation, sale or other form of distribution of the topography or integrated circuit incorporating the respective topography or products that include integrated circuit incorporating the respective topography.

#### **Question 98**

Please explain how your legislation provides for the derogation from Article 36 as specified in Article 37 of TRIPS where a person has no knowledge or reasonable grounds to know when acquiring an integrated circuit or an article incorporating such an integrated circuit that it contains an unlawful topography.

# Answer:

Pursuant to Article 16 of the Law on Protection of Topographies of Integrated Circuits, a person who commercially exploits an integrated circuit incorporating the protected topography, and who has no knowledge, or has no reasonable grounds to know that the topography of the product is protected, is not prevented from commercially exploiting the integrated circuit. But compensation is payable, and its amount depends on the scope of commercial exploitation of the protected topography.

Paragraph 3 of the same Article states that the amount of such compensation can be agreed upon by the right holder of the protected topography and the person who commercially exploits an integrated circuit incorporating the protected topography, and who has no knowledge, or has no reasonable grounds to know that the topography of the product is protected. If no agreement is reached, the competent court establishes the amount of compensation.

# **Question 99**

Please state the term of protection granted by your legislation to topographies.

#### Answer:

Pursuant to Article 10 of the Law on Protection of Topographies of Integrated Circuits, the exclusive right ends ten years after the earlier of the following events:

- the end of the calendar year in which the topography is first commercially exploited anywhere in the world; and
- the end of the calendar year in which the application has been filed in Macedonia in due form.

Paragraph 5 of the same Article states that if topography has not been commercially exploited, the exclusive rights expires after 15 years from the date of its fixation or encoding.

# (h) Requirements on undisclosed information, including trade secrets and test data

# **Question 100**

Please explain whether or not your legislation grants a defined period of time for the protection of undisclosed information and if so, please give the time span.

Please explain how your legislation defines undisclosed information.

Please explain how your legislation defines data submitted to governments or governmental agencies.

Pursuant to Article 20 of the Law on Government Officials (Official Gazette 59/2000), a government official is required to keep secret all state and official information in a manner and under conditions determined by law and other regulations. The obligation to keep the information secret continues for three years after the termination of the official's service.

Pursuant to Article 150 of the Law on General Administrative Proceedings (Official Gazette 47/86), administrative hearings are public. The official in charge of the hearing may exclude the public during the whole or any part of a hearing on the grounds of moral or public safety, or where the hearing involving official, business, professional, scientific or artistic secrets. The official in charge must warn all persons that they are obliged to keep secret any information learned at the hearing and reminded about the consequences if they do not keep the secret.

Pursuant to Article 292 of the Law on Trial Proceedings (Official Gazette 33/98), the judge may exclude the public from the whole or any part of any hearing in the interests of keeping an official, business or personal secret, or maintenance of the public order and moral. The court must remind the persons present of obligations to keep the confidential information secret.

Pursuant to Article 280 of the Law on Criminal Proceedings (Official Gazette 15/97), the court may ex officio or upon request of the parties, exclude the public for any period of time from the hearing for the purpose of keeping information secret. The president of the court shall remind all the persons present on their obligations to keep the secret and warn that the act of not keeping a secret is a criminal act.

The Law on Misdemeanours (Official Gazette 15/97) contains similar provisions.

# 4. Enforcement

#### **Question 101**

Please explain whether or not your legislation provides for a mechanism to appeal to judicial bodies of final administrative decisions in the areas covered by TRIPS.

#### Answer:

According to Macedonian law all final administrative decisions may be submitted to the Supreme Court for review in a procedure known as "administrative dispute". The main two laws in this area are: the Law on General Administrative Proceedings (Official Gazette 47/86) and the Law on Administrative Dispute (Official Gazette 4/77).

# **Question 102**

Please describe how your legislation authorizes judges to order production of evidence by the opposing party.

Please give precise information on what measures are taken to ensure the protection of confidential information.

#### Answer:

According to Article 7 of the Law on Trial Proceedings, the court is required to investigate fully and truly the challenged facts. The parties to the dispute are required to present all facts and

submit evidence in support of their claims. The court is also empowered to consider evidence not presented by the parties. According to Article 205, the court decides what evidence is to be presented.

The same requirements exist in criminal proceedings pursuant to Article 11 of the Law on Criminal Proceedings (Official Gazette 15/97).

The draft Law on Industrial Property provides that a person whose right is infringed may ask the court to order to the person that infringes his right to desist from further infringement, to confiscate and destroy products produced or put on the market with the aim of infringement, to submit documents and data of the infringing party, and to order the publication of the court decision which establishes the infringement.

# **Question 103**

Please quote provisions of your legislation that authorize judges to order a defendant to desist from an infringement.

#### Answer:

Pursuant to Article 159, Paragraph 1 of the Law on Copyright and Related Rights, the right holder may request the infringer desist from any conduct causing the infringement or conducive thereto.

Also, pursuant to Article 162, Paragraph 1 of the Law on Copyright and Related Rights, the court may, at the request of the right holder, determine provisional measures to prohibit any conduct causing an infringement.

# **Question 104**

Please quote what provisions of your legislation authorize judges to order the payment of the right holder's expenses by the infringer.

#### Answer:

Pursuant to Article 143 of the Law on Trial Proceedings, the unsuccessful party is required to pay the expenses of the winning party and of other parties participating in the proceeding on behalf of the winning party. Upon partial success of the trial, the court may decide that expenses be paid proportionally by the parties to the dispute or that one party proportionally compensates the expenses of the other. According to Article 91 of the Law on Criminal Proceedings, if the accused is found guilty, he is required to pay all costs of the criminal proceedings.

# **Question 105**

Please explain if and how judges have the authority to order that infringing goods be placed outside channels of commerce or destroyed.

#### Answer:

Pursuant to Article 162, Paragraph 1 of the Law on Copyright and Related Rights, when the exclusive right has been infringed, the court may, at the request of the right holder, determine provisional measures to seize, remove from circulation and to store copies, devices, equipment and the documents relating thereto.

In criminal proceedings, pursuant to Article 157 of the Criminal Code (Official Gazette 37/96), the court is empowered to order seizure of the infringing goods.

Draft Law on Industrial Property, Article 249, provides that the person whose right is infringed may request the court to order confiscation of the infringing goods, as well as excluding such goods from commerce.

# **Question 106**

Please quote what provisions of your legislation authorize judges to indemnify a defendant in the event of abuse by the plaintiff.

# Answer:

Article 145 of the Law on Trial Proceedings, empowers a judge to award costs to a party who may have incurred them unreasonably.

#### **Ouestion 107**

Please indicate whether or not procedures are available to suspend the exporting of counterfeit goods.

# Answer:

Pursuant to Article 165 of the Law on Copyright and Related Rights: "If the right holder reports that his exclusive right according to this Law has been infringed by the importation of certain goods into the State, the customs authorities may, on his request, determine the following customs measures:

- the right holder or his agent to inspect the goods; and
- the goods to be seized, removed from circulation, or stored in a secure place."

Pursuant to Article 252 of the draft Law on Industrial Property, the customs authorities may determine the same measures.

#### **Ouestion 108**

Please indicate whether or not your legislation provides for a de minimis imports exception.

#### Answer:

Pursuant to Article 181 of the Customs Law (Official Gazette 21/98), items intended for personal use are exempted from duties.

# **Question 109**

Please explain how your legislation implements Article 61 of TRIPS.

#### Answer:

Article 157 of the Criminal Code provides that where an infringement of a copyright and related rights takes place, a fine or imprisonment of one year may be imposed on a person who without authorization discloses, presents, reproduces, distributes, performs, broadcasts or in any other way tries to obtain illegally someone else's copyright or related rights. The same article provides that

in such cases the copies of the copyright work, subjects of related rights and means for their reproduction shall be seized.

#### VI. TRADE-RELATED SERVICES REGIME

#### 1. General

#### **Question 110**

Explain whether the MFN exemptions on real estate and legal services are based on provisions of any national legislation.

# Answer:

Yes, these MFN exemptions are based on the provisions of the following laws:

- Law on Ownership and Real Rights (Official Gazette 18/01), Articles 243-247;
- Law on Building Land (Official Gazette 53/01), Articles 6 and 19; and
- Law on the Bar (Official Gazette 80/92), Article 11.

# i. Banking

# **Question 111**

Provide more information about foreigners being permitted to provide services through branches and/or subsidiaries.

# Answer:

Foreigners may provide banking services in Macedonia by establishing a bank or a subsidiary of a bank.

The criteria for establishment of a bank or a subsidiary are identical for foreign and domestic natural and legal persons.

Pursuant to Article 6 of the Law on Banks (Official Gazette 63/2000), a foreign bank may provide banking services by establishing a subsidiary in the Republic of Macedonia. The subsidiary has a status of a legal entity, and for its establishment the same requirements apply as for the establishment of a bank.

Pursuant to Article 9 of the Law on Banks, an individual natural or legal person other than a bank may not hold more than one third of the stock with management rights in a bank established in Macedonia. This requirement is in force until 1 January 2003. From that date onward, there will be no limitations on the establishment of banks, i.e. domestic and foreign natural persons and legal entities will be able to own 100 per cent of the capital of a bank established in the Republic of Macedonia.

# **Question 112**

Provide more information on the regime for issuing and trading in travellers checks and credit/debit/charge cards.

#### Answer:

The issuance of a check, as well as other related rules and issues, are regulated by the Law on Check (Official Gazette 3/02). The provisions of this law are general and apply to all types of checks, including travellers checks. There are no limitations on the issuance of a check, except that a check which is payable in Macedonia can be drawn on a bank.

There are no specific provisions in the Macedonian legislation on the regime for issuing and trading in credit/debit/charge cards. However, pursuant to Article 45 of the Law on Banks, issuing a credit/debit cards is listed as one of the activities that may be provided by a bank.

#### **Ouestion 113**

On the basis of what criteria does the Central Bank determine the capital share of a foreign bank?

#### Answer:

There are no specific criteria.

#### **Question 114**

What are the criteria of the approval used by the Commission of Securities?

#### Answer:

According to Article 38 of the Law on Securities (Official Gazette 63/2000), an approval by the Commission of Securities is based on an application containing:

- basic information about the applicant and applicant's business and development strategy,
- information about the members of the applicant's management team, and
- information on the issue of securities.

Article 39 of the Law on Securities require the applicant to submit additional information and documentation, such as: an establishment act; report by a certified auditor for the last three years; balance sheet and profit and loss account for the last three years; any decision about the issue of securities; and other relevant documents that the Commission may require.

Article 41 of the Law on Securities, requires the Commission of Securities to decide the application within 30 days from the date of its submission. The decision is based on the information submitted.

#### ii. Insurance

#### **Question 115**

What is the status of enactment of the new Law on Insurance?

#### Answer:

The new Law on Insurance Supervision has been submitted to the Parliament for consideration. An English translation of the draft law has also been submitted to the Working Party for comment.

#### **Question 116**

What is the procedure for gaining temporary entry work visas for professionals in the insurance industry?

#### Answer:

There are no special provisions related to professionals in the insurance industry.

#### **Ouestion 117**

What are the minimum requirements for the establishment of an insurance company? What is meant by minimum requirements?

#### Answer:

Pursuant to Article 12 of the Law on Insurance (Official Gazette 35/01), an insurance company is established upon the payment of the base capital. The base capital is paid in Denar counter value of:

- EURO 750,000 if the company is established for carrying out life or non-life insurance activities; and
- EURO 1,000,000 if the company is established for carrying out reinsurance activities.

#### **Ouestion 118**

Are the criteria for the establishment of an insurance company publicly available?

#### Answer:

Yes, the criteria for the establishment of an insurance company are stated in the Law on Insurance.

#### **Question 119**

Are the capitalization requirements for the establishment of an insurance company higher for foreign participants?

#### Answer:

No. Pursuant to Article 12, Paragraph 5 of the Law on Insurance, the capital requirements are identical for both foreign and domestic natural and legal persons.

#### **Question 120**

New applicants are required to supply information as set out in the Insurance Law to a Commission established by the Minister of Finance. Is this requirement documented and publicly available?

#### Answer:

Yes, the authorization process is documented and publicly available. Pursuant to Article 17 Paragraph 5 of the Law on Insurance, the decision of the Minister of Finance to authorize the establishment of an insurance company is published in the media.

#### **Question 121**

May the decision of the Commission concerning the establishment of an insurance company be appealed? To whom and on what basis?

#### Answer:

Yes, there is an appeal process against a decision concerning the establishment of an insurance company. The appeal is submitted to a committee established by the government which is required to decide the matter within 8 days.

#### **Question 122**

Does Macedonia anticipate lifting the limitation for foreign insurance companies to engage in reinsurance in the defense industry (except with the permission of the Ministry of Defense)?

#### Answer:

Such limitation does not exist.

#### **Question 123**

What other limitations apply to foreign companies under the current Law on Insurance in reinsurance activities?

#### Answer:

There are no other limitations. In fact, the only reinsurance company that operates in Macedonia in this moment is a foreign company.

#### **Question 124**

Current law requires the approval of the Minister of Finance for the establishment and operation of an insurance company. Are the criteria publicly available? Are the criteria different for foreign and domestic companies?

#### Answer:

Yes, all criteria appear in the Law on Insurance (Articles 13-19), and they are identical for domestic and foreign companies.

#### **Question 125**

Is the legislative process with regard to laws on insurance transparent? Does it enable the industry to have an adequate notice and time to submit comments?

#### Answer:

Yes. The drafts of the laws are always submitted to the industry for comments. Many of these comments were used in the drafting of the new Law on Insurance Supervision.

#### **Question 126**

Do you anticipate the elimination/phasing-out of the compulsory reinsurance cessions?

#### Answer:

This limitation does not exist any more.

#### 2. Policies affecting Trade in Services

#### **Question 127**

Why is a foreign auditing company permitted to establish only one auditing company in Macedonia?

#### Answer:

Pursuant to Article 4 of the Law on Audit (Official Gazette 65/97, 27/2000, 31/01), an auditing company registered to provide auditing services in Macedonia can be established only by an authorized auditor. However, non-audit company may acquire and hold up to 25 per cent of stock in a new established auditing company in the Republic of Macedonia.

#### **Question 128**

Why is a foreign company not registered to provide auditing services in its own country prohibited to participate as a capital investor in a newly established auditing company in Macedonia?

#### Answer:

If a foreign company is not registered in its own country for providing auditing services, its participation in the total capital of a new established auditing company in the Republic of Macedonia cannot exceed 25 per cent. In fact, the same requirement also applies to domestic companies that are not registered for providing auditing services.

The purpose of this requirement is to ensure that an auditing company is at least 75 per cent owned by an authorized auditor and/or auditing company. It is expected that such company will provide higher quality of services.

### VII. INSTITUTIONAL BASE FOR TRADE AND ECONOMIC RELATIONS WITH THIRD COUNTRIES

#### 2. Economic integration, customs unions and free-trade area agreements

#### **Question 129**

Will Macedonia submit details of proposals for bringing the arrangements under preferential trade agreements into line with Article XXIV of GATT 1994 (paragraph 79 of the factual summary is outdated and the arrangements may have changed)?

#### Answer:

In addition to the agreements described in the answers to Questions 151-158 of WT/ACC/807/18, Macedonia submits the following information about agreements recently made with the EFTA member countries (Switzerland, Norway, Liechtenstein and Iceland) and with Ukraine.

#### (a) Free Trade Agreement with the EFTA Countries

#### General

Signed in Zurich on 19 June 2000. The Agreement will enter into force on 1 May 2002.

Free trade agreement, establishes a free trade area within a period of ten years

#### Scope

Agricultural and fish products from Chapters 1 to 24 of the HS.

Industrial products from Chapters 25 to 97 of the HS.

#### **Trade provisions**

#### - <u>Import Customs Duties</u>

Macedonia shall abolish all customs duties on imports originating in the EFTA countries, including the specific customs duties (Article 4, paragraph 2), except those referred to in List A and List B of Annex III, for which the customs duties will be abolished gradually over a period of six and nine years, respectively.

EFTA countries shall abolish all customs duties on imports of goods originating in Macedonia, including specific customs duties (Article 4, paragraph 2) with the exception of Switzerland and Liechtenstein for products listed in Annex II, Table 4.

The Contracting Parties shall abolish all customs duties of fiscal nature (Article 6).

#### - Export Customs Duties

The Contracting Parties shall abolish all customs duties on exports (Article 7).

#### Quantitative Restrictions

Quantitative restrictions on exports and imports between the Contracting Parties shall be abolished, except for products listed in Annex IV, as regards imports to and exports from Macedonia which may be maintained for a period of four years from the date of entry into force of the Agreement.

#### - Rules of Origin

Protocol B of the Agreement defines the rules of origin and methods of administrative cooperation related to them.

#### **Standards**

#### - Sanitary and Phytosanitary Measures

Article 12 stipulates non-discriminatory application of national regulations regarding sanitary and phytosanitary measures.

#### - Safeguards - General Protective Measures

In cases where a particular product is imported in large quantities, the Contracting Parties may introduce adequate measures in accordance with the Agreement and the WTO rules (Article 20).

When either of the Contracting Parties has serious balance-of-payments difficulties, it is allowed to take restrictive measures, including import-related measures in accordance with the GATT 1994 (Article 23).

#### **Exceptions**

#### - General Exceptions

The Agreement does not exclude bans or restrictions of import, export or transit of goods, established for the protection of: public moral, public order, public security, protection of national treasures, historical and archeological values etc., on the conditions that these measures are connected with the restrictions in domestic production or consumption and are in accordance with the international agreements (Article 9).

#### Security Exceptions

Exceptions due to security reasons (Article 25).

The full text of the Agreement has been submitted to the WTO Secretariat.

#### (b) Free Trade Agreement with Ukraine

#### General

Signed in Skopje on 18 January 2001. Entered into force on 10 September 2001

Free trade agreement, establishes free trade area within a period of ten years

#### Scope

Agricultural and food products from Chapters 1 to 24 of the HS

Industrial products from Chapters 25 to 97 of the HS

#### **Trade provisions**

#### Import Customs Duties

Macedonia shall abolish all customs duties on imports of goods originating in Ukraine, except for products listed in Protocol A and the customs evidence fee (Article 4, paragraph 2).

Ukraine shall abolish all customs duties on imports of goods originating in Macedonia, except for products listed in Protocol A and the customs evidence fee (Article 4, paragraph 2).

The Contracting Parties shall abolish all customs duties of fiscal nature (Article 6).

#### - Export Customs Duties

The Contracting Parties shall abolish all customs duties on exports (Article 7).

#### - <u>Concessions in Agriculture</u>

Tariff quotas on imports of agricultural products from Macedonia to Ukraine and vice versa, will be granted under the concessions given in Protocol B (Annexes I and II, respectively).

#### Quantitative Restrictions

All quantitative restrictions between the Contracting Parties shall be abolished, both on exports and imports (Article 8, paragraph 2) except those referred to in Article 4 of Protocol A, as regards imports to and exports from Macedonia and Ukraine for a period of up to four years.

#### Rules of Origin

Protocol C of the Agreement defines the rules of origin and methods of administrative cooperation related to them.

#### Standards

#### - <u>Sanitary and Phytosanitary Measures</u>

Article 14 stipulates non-discriminatory application of national regulations regarding veterinary, sanitary and phytosanitary measures in compliance with international conventions.

#### - <u>Safeguards - General Protective Measures</u>

In cases where a particular product is imported in increased quantities, the Contracting Parties may introduce appropriate measures. (Article 19).

When either of the Contracting Parties has serious balance-of-payments difficulties, it is allowed to take restrictive measures, including import-related measures in accordance with GATT 1994 (Article 27).

#### **Exceptions**

#### General Exceptions

The Agreement does not prohibit bans or restrictions on import, export or transit of goods, established for the protection of: public moral, public order, public security, protection of national treasures, historical and archeological values etc., if these measures are connected with the restrictions in domestic production or consumption and are in accordance with the international agreements (Article 23).

#### Security Exceptions

Exceptions due to security reasons (Article 32).

The full text of the Agreement has been submitted to the WTO Secretariat.

#### (c) <u>Status of Negotiations with Other Countries in the Region</u>

Albania – The Agreement was signed on 29 March 2002.

Bosnia and Herzegovina – The second round of negotiations took place on 3-5 April 2002.

Romania and Hungary – Consultative meetings were held with both countries in 2000. No further developments to date.

The information in the answers to Questions 151-158 of WT/ACC/807/18 and herein is current. It is believed to be in line with Article XXIV of GATT 1994.

## ATTACHMENT 1 <u>Action Plan For the Equalization of Excise Taxes on Domestic and Imported Tobacco Products</u>

	Γ	Oomestic cigarett	arettes Imported cigarette			es	
Year	Excis	e Tax	Level of	Excis	se Tax	Level of	
Tear	per cent of retail price	MKD/piece	reduction (per cent)	per cent of retail price	MKD/piece	reduction (per cent)	
2003	33	/	0	0	1.350	0	
2004	33	/	0	0	1.350	0	
2005	30	0.040	0	5	1.100	-3.8	
2006	28	0.070	0	10	0.800	-11.2	
2007	26	0.100	0	26	0.100	-15.6	

	Dome	estic cigars and	stic cigars and cigarillos		Imported cigars and cigarillos		
Year	Excis	e Tax	Level of	Excis	e Tax	Level of	
i eai	per cent of retail price	MKD/piece	reduction (per cent)	per cent of retail price	MKD/piece	reduction (per cent)	
2002	33	0.000	0	0	1.350	0	
2003	33	0.000	0	0	1.350	0	
2004	33	0.000	0	0	1.350	0	
2005	0	1.350	0	0	1.350	0	

	Dom	estic fine sliced	tobacco	Imported fine sliced tobacco		bacco
Year	Excis	e Tax	Level of	Excise Tax		Level of
per cent of		MKD/kg	reduction	per cent of	MKD/kg	reduction
	retail price	WIKD/Kg	(per cent)	retail price	WIKD/Kg	(per cent)
2002	33	0.00	0	0	1.350	0
2003	33	0.00	0	0	1.350	0
2004	33	0.00	0	0	1.350	0
2005	0	1.350	0	0	1.350	0

	Domes	tic other smoki	ng tobacco	Imported other smoking tobacc		tobacco	
Year	Excis	e Tax	Level of	Excis	e Tax	Level of	
1 Cai	per cent of		per cent of MKD/kg reduction		per cent of	MKD/kg	reduction (per cent)
	retail price		(per cent)	retail price			
2002	33	0.00	0	0	1.350	0	
2003	33	0.00	0	0	1.350	0	
2004	33	0.00	0	0	1.350	0	
2005	0	1.350	0	0	1.350	0	

# ATTACHMENT 2 <u>Timetable For Abolition of LB8 Import and Export Licenses – Imports</u>

Tariff no         Description         Timetable for not need to provide the provided straight of the prov	
0805 20 30 00 wilkings and similar citrus hybrids.  0805 20 50 00 0805 20 70 00 0805 20 90 00  0803 00 11 00 0803 00 19 00  Bananas, including plantains, fresh or dried; 30 June 20	302
0805 20 50 00 0805 20 70 00 0805 20 90 00 0803 00 11 00 0803 00 19 00  Bananas, including plantains, fresh or dried; 30 June 20	
0805 20 70 00 0805 20 90 00 0803 00 11 00 0803 00 19 00  Bananas, including plantains, fresh or dried; 30 June 20	
0805 20 90 00         0803 00 11 00       Bananas, including plantains, fresh or dried;       30 June 20         0803 00 19 00       30 June 20	
0803 00 11 00 Bananas, including plantains, fresh or dried; 30 June 20 0803 00 19 00	
0803 00 19 00	202
	J02
	202
0805 10 10 00 Oranges; 30 June 20	302
0805 10 30 00	
0805 10 50 00	
0805 10 80 00	2001
1001 10 00 90 Durum wheat 31 December	
1001 90 99 00 Other wheat 31 December	
1006 10 21 00 Rice in the husk (paddy or rough) 30 June 20	002
1006 10 23 00	
1006 10 25 00	
1006 10 27 00	
1006 10 92 00	
1006 10 94 00	
1006 10 96 00	
1006 10 98 00	
1006 20 11 00	
1006 20 13 00	
1006 20 15 00	
1006 20 17 00	
1006 20 92 00	
1006 20 94 00	
1006 20 96 00	
1006 20 98 00	
1006 30 21 00 Semi-milled or wholly milled rice, whether or not polished or 30 June 20	002
1006 30 23 00 glazed	
1006 30 25 00	
1006 30 27 00	
1006 30 42 00	
1006 30 44 00	
1006 30 46 00	
1006 30 48 00	
1006 30 61 00	
1006 30 63 00	
1006 30 65 00	
1006 30 67 00	
1006 30 92 00	
1006 30 94 00	
1006 30 96 00	
1006 30 98 00	
1006 40 00 00 Broken rice 30 June 20	002
1101 00 11 00 Wheat or meslin flour 30 June 20	
1101 00 15 00 Wheat of meshi floar	<del>-</del>
1101 00 90 00	

Tariff no	Description	Timetable for removal
2710 00 11 00	Light oils	31 December 2003
2710 00 11 00	Light ons	31 December 2003
2710 00 13 00	White spirit	31 December 2003
2710 00 21 00	Other	31 December 2003
2710 00 23 00	With an octane number (RON) of less than 95	31 December 2003
2710 00 27 00	With an octane number (RON) of 185s than 95  With an octane number (RON) of 95 or more but less than 98	31 December 2003
2710 00 29 00	With an octane number (RON) of 93 or more  With an octane number (RON) of 98 or more	31 December 2003
2710 00 32 00	With an octane number (RON) of 98 of more  With an octane number (RON) of less than 98	31 December 2003
2710 00 36 00 2710 00 39 00	With an octane number (RON) of 98 or more	31 December 2003 31 December 2003
2710 00 39 00	Other light oils Medium oils	
2710 00 41 00	Medium oils	31 December 2003
2710 00 43 00	T. (C. 1	21 D
2710 00 51 00	Jet fuel	31 December 2003 31 December 2003
	Other	31 December 2003
2710 00 59 00	G1.	21 D
2710 00 61 00 2710 00 65 00	Gas oils	31 December 2003
2710 00 65 00	For other purposes	31 December 2003
2710 00 66 00	For other purposes	31 December 2003
2710 00 67 00		
2710 00 08 00	Fuel oils	31 December 2003
2710 00 71 00	ruei ons	31 December 2003
2710 00 72 00	For other purposes	31 December 2003
2710 00 74 00	For other purposes	31 December 2003
2710 00 70 00		
2710 00 77 00		
2711 12 11 00	Propane	31 December 2003
2711 12 11 00	Tropane	31 December 2003
2711 12 17 00		
2711 12 93 00		
2711 13 10 00	Butanes	31 December 2003
2711 13 10 00	Buttiles	31 December 2003
3102 40 10 00	Mixtures of ammonium nitrate with calcium carbonate or other	31 December 2001
3102 40 90 00	inorganic non-fertilising substances;	21 2 <b>000</b> 1110 <b>01 2</b> 001
7208 25 00 00	Of a thickness of 4.75 mm or more	31 December 2001
7208 51 10 00	Of a thickness exceeding 10 mm	31 December 2001
7208 51 30 00	Exceeding 20 mm	31 December 2001
7208 51 50 00	Exceeding 25 mm but not exceeding 20 mm	31 December 2001
7208 51 91 00	2,050 mm or more	31 December 2001
7208 51 91 00	Less than 2,050 mm	31 December 2001
7208 51 99 00	Rolled on four faces or in a closed box pass, of a width not	31 December 2001
7200 32 10 00	exceeding 1,250 mm	51 December 2001
	Other, of a width of:	31 December 2001
7208 52 91 00	2,050 mm or more	31 December 2001
7208 52 91 00	Less than 2,050 mm	31 December 2001
7208 52 99 00	Rolled on four or in a closed box pass, of a width not exceeding	31 December 2001
1200 33 10 00	1,250 mm and of a thickness of 4 mm or more	21 December 2001
7208 53 90 00	Other	31 December 2001
7208 53 90 00	Of a thickness of 2 mm or more	31 December 2001
7208 54 10 00	Of a thickness of 2 mm or more Of a thickness of less than 2 mm	31 December 2001
7208 90 10 00	Not further worked than surface-treated or simply cut into	31 December 2001
7208 00 00 00	shapes other than rectangular (including square)	21 December 2001
7208 90 90 00	Other Control of the	31 December 2001
7209 15 00 00	Of a thickness of 3 mm or more	31 December 2001

Tariff no	Description	Timetable for removal
7209 16 10 00	"Electrical"	31 December 2001
7209 16 90 00	- Other	31 December 2001
7209 17 10 00	"Electrical"	31 December 2001
7209 17 10 00	Other	31 December 2001
7209 17 90 00	"Electrical"	31 December 2001
7209 18 10 00	Of a thickness of 0.35 mm or more but less than 0.5mm	31 December 2001
7209 18 99 00	Of a thickness of 0.35 mm Of a thickness of less than 0.35 mm	31 December 2001
7209 26 10 00	"Electrical"	31 December 2001
7209 26 90 00	Other	31 December 2001
7209 27 10 00	"Electrical"	31 December 2001
7209 27 10 00	Other	31 December 2001
7209 90 10 00	- Not further worked than surface-treated or simply cut	31 December 2001
7209 90 10 00	into shapes other than rectangular (including square)	31 December 2001
7209 90 90 00	Other	31 December 2001
7305 11 00 00	Longitudinally submerged arc welded	31 December 2001
7305 12 00 00	Other, longitudinally welded	31 December 2001
7305 12 00 00	Other	31 December 2001
7305 20 10 00	Longitudinally welded	31 December 2001
7305 20 90 00	Other	31 December 2001
7305 31 00 00	Longitudinally welded	31 December 2001
7305 39 00 00	Other	31 December 2001
7305 90 00 00	Other	31 December 2001
7306 10 11 00	Not more than 168.3 mm	31 December 2001
7306 10 11 00	More than 168.3 mm, but not more than 406.4 mm	31 December 2001
7306 10 90 00	Spirally welded	31 December 2001
7306 30 10 00	With attached fittings, suitable for conducting gases or liquids,	31 December 2001
7300301000	for use in civil aircraft	
7306 30 21 00	Not exceeding 2 mm	31 December 2001
7306 30 29 00	Exceeding 2 mm	31 December 2001
7306 30 51 00	Plated or coated with zinc	31 December 2001
7306 30 59 00	Other	31 December 2001
7306 30 71 00	Not exceeding 168.3 mm, plated or coated with zinc	31 December 2001
7306 30 78 00	Smoke ventilation pipes	31 December 2001
7306 30 90 00	- Exceeding 168.3 mm, but not exceeding 406.4 mm	31 December 2001
7306 50 10 00	With attached fittings, suitable for gases or liquids, for use in	31 December 2001
	civil aircraft	
7306 50 91 00	Precision tubes	31 December 2001
7306 50 99 00	Other	31 December 2001
7306 60 10 00	With attached fittings, suitable for conducting gases or liquids,	31 December 2001
7306 60 31 00	for use in civil aircraft  Not exceeding 2 mm	31 December 2001
7306 60 39 00	Exceeding 2 mm	31 December 2001
7306 60 90 00	Of other sections	31 December 2001
7306 90 00 00	Other Other	31 December 2001
7604 10 10 00	Bars and rods	31 December 2001
7604 10 90 00	Profiles	31 December 2001
7604 21 00 00	Hollow profiles	31 December 2001
7604 29 10 00	Bars and rods	31 December 2001
7604 29 90 00	Profiles	31 December 2001
7608 10 90 00	Other	31 December 2001
7608 20 10 00	With attached fittings, for use in civil aircrafts	31 December 2001
7608 20 10 00	Welded	31 December 2001
7608 20 30 00	Not further worked than extruded	31 December 2001
7000 20 91 00	INOUTHINEL WOLKER MAIL EXHIBER	31 December 2001

Tariff no	Description	Timetable for removal
7608 20 99 00	Other	31 December 2001
8702 10 11 00	New	30 June 2002
8702 10 19 00	Used	30 June 2002
8702 10 91 00	New	30 June 2002
8702 10 99 00	Used	30 June 2002
8702 90 11 00	New	30 June 2002
8702 90 19 00	Used	30 June 2002
8702 90 31 00	New	30 June 2002
8702 90 39 00	Used	30 June 2002
8702 90 90 00	With other engines	30 June 2002

#### <u>Timetable For Abolition of LB8 Import and Export Licenses - Exports</u>

Tariff no	Description	Timetable for removal
1001 10 00 90	Other	31 December 2001
1001 90 99 00	Other	31 December 2001
1101 00 11 00	Of durum wheat	31 December 2001
1101 00 15 00	Of common wheat and spelt	31 December 2001
1101 00 90 00	Meslin flour	31 December 2001
1512 11 10 00	For technical or industrial uses other than the manufacture of foodstuffs for human consumption	31 December 2001
1512 11 91 00	Sunflower-seed oil	31 December 2001
1512 11 99 00	Safflower oil	31 December 2001
1701 99 10 00	White sugar	31 December 2001
2709 00 90 10	Oil, crude	31 December 2003
2710 00 11 00	For undergoing a specific process	31 December 2003
2710 00 15 00	For undergoing chemical transformation by a process other than those specified in respect of subheading 2710 00 11 00	31 December 2003
2710 00 26 00	Aviation spirit	31 December 2003
2710 00 27 00	With an octane number (RON) of less than 95	31 December 2003
2710 00 29 00	With an octane number (RON) of 95 or more but less than 98	31 December 2003
2710 00 32 00	With an octane number (RON) of 98 or more	31 December 2003
2710 00 34 00	With an octane number (RON) of less than 98	31 December 2003
2710 00 36 00	With an octane number (RON) of 98 or more	31 December 2003
2710 00 30 00		31 December 2003
2710 00 41 00	For undergoing a specific process	
	For undergoing chemical transformation by a process other than those specified in respect of subheading 2710 00 41 00	31 December 2003
2710 00 61 00	For undergoing a specific process	31 December 2003
2710 00 65 00	For undergoing chemical transformation by a process other than those specified in respect of subheading 2710 00 61 00	31 December 2003
2710 00 66 00	With a sulphur content not exceeding 0,05 per cent by weight	31 December 2003
2710 00 67 00	With a sulphur content exceeding 0,05 per cent by weight But not exceeding 0,2 per cent by weight	31 December 2003
2710 00 68 00	With a sulphur content exceeding 0,2 per cent by weight	31 December 2003
2710 00 71 00	For undergoing a specific process	31 December 2003
2710 00 72 00	For undergoing chemical transformation by a process other than those specified in respect of subheading 2710 00 71 00	31 December 2003
2710 00 74 00	With a sulphur content not exceeding 1 per cent by weight	31 December 2003
2710 00 76 00	With a sulphur content exceeding 1 per cent by weight	31 December 2003
2710 00 77 00	But not exceeding 2 per cent by weight	21 Da
2710 00 77 00	With a sulphur content exceeding 2 per cent by weight But not exceeding 2,8 per cent by weight	31 December 2003
2710 00 78 00	With a sulphur content exceeding 2,8 per cent by weight	31 December 2003
2711 12 11 00	For use as a power or heating fuel	31 December 2003
2711 12 19 00	For other purposes	31 December 2003
2711 12 91 00	For undergoing a specific process	31 December 2003
2711 12 93 00	For undergoing chemical transformation by a process other than those specified in respect of subheading 2711 12 91 00	31 December 2003
2711 13 10 00	For undergoing a specific process	31 December 2003
2711 13 30 00	For undergoing chemical transformation by a process other than those specified in respect of subheading 2711 13 10 00	31 December 2003

**ATTACHMENT 3** List of Products Subject to Licence Issued by the Bureau for Standardization and Metrology

Tariff No.	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	Time- table for removal
8413 11 00 00	Pumps for dispensing fuel or lubricants, of the type used in filling-stations or in garages	NA <sup>1</sup>	TBT	MEc-BSM <sup>2</sup>	n.a <sup>3</sup>
8414 51 10 00	Fans with a self-contained electric motor of an output not exceeding 125W: For use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8414 51 90 00	Other table, floor, wall, window or roof fans with a self-contained electric motor of an output not exceeding	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8418 10 10 00	Combined refrigerator-freezers, fitted with separate external doors: For use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8418 10 91 10	Other combined refrigerator-freezers, fitted with separate external doors: Of a capacity exceeding 340 litres, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8418 10 99 10	Other combined refrigerator-freezers, fitted with separate external doors: new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8418 21 10 10	Refrigerators, household type: compression type: of a capacity exceeding 340 litres, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8418 21 51 10	Other refrigerators, household type: Table model, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8418 21 59 10	Other refrigerators, household type: Building-in type, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8418 21 91 10	Other refrigerators, household type, compression-type, of a capacity not exceeding 250 litres, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8418 21 99 10	Other refrigerators, household type, compression-type, of a capacity: Exceeding 250 litres but not exceeding 340 litres, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8418 22 00 10	Refrigerators, household type, Absorption- type, electrical, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8418 29 00 10	Other refrigerators, household type: new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8418 30 10 00	Freezers of the chest type, not exceeding 800 litres capacity for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8418 30 91 10	Other freezers of the chest type, Of a capacity not exceeding 400 litres, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8418 30 99 10	Other freezers of the chest type, Of a capacity exceeding 400 litres but not exceeding 800 litres capacity, new	NA	ТВТ	MEc-BSM	n.a
8418 40 10 00	Freezers of the upright type, not exceeding 900 litres capacity: For use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a

Non-Automatic
 Ministry of Economy - Bureau for Standardization and Metrology
 non-applicable

ernment   Time
table for
removal c-BSM n.a
) BOW
c-BSM n.a
c-BSM n.a
e-BSM n.a
) BOW
c-BSM n.a
c-BSM n.a
c-BSM n.a
c-BSM n.a
e-BSM n.a
Day.
c-BSM n.a
c-BSM n.a
J-DSWI II.a
c-BSM n.a
c-BSM n.a
c-BSM n.a
D.63.4
c-BSM n.a
c-BSM n.a
DCM no
e-BSM n.a
c-BSM n.a
c-BSM n.a
c-BSM n.a
e-BSM n.a
7011
c-BSM n.a
e-BSM n.a
JOINI II.a
c-BSM n.a

					Time-
Tariff No.	Description	Type of	Justifi-	Government	table for
Turin 110.	Description	licence	cation	agency	removal
8450 19 00 00	Other machines, each of dry linen capacity	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	not exceeding 10 kg				
8451 21 10 00	Drying machines each of a dry linen	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	capacity not exceeding 6 kg				
8451 21 90 00	Drying machines each of a dry linen	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	capacity exceeding 6 kg but not				
	exceeding 10 kg				
8451 30 10 00	Ironing machines and presses(including	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	fusing presses): Electrically heated, of a				
0.454.50.00.00	power not exceeding 2 500 W				
8451 30 80 00	Other ironing machines and presses	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
0.452.10.00.00	(including fusing presses)	NT A	TDT	ME DOM	
8452 10 00 00 8470 21 00 00	Sewing machines of the household type	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8470 21 00 00	Electronic calculators capable of operation without an external source of electric	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	power: Incorporating a printing device				
8470 29 00 00	Other electronic calculators capable of	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
0470 27 00 00	operation without an external source of	IVA	101	WILC-DSWI	π.α
	electric power				
8470 30 00 00	Other calculating machines	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8470 50 00 00	Cash registers	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8471 10 10 00	Analogue or hybrid automatic data-	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	processing machines: For use in civil				
	aircraft				
8471 10 90 00	Other analogue or hybrid automatic data-	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	processing machines				
8471 30 00 00	Portable digital automatic data-processing	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	machines, weighing not more than 10 kg				
8471 41 10 00	Other digital automatic data-processing	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
0.454.44.00.00	machines: For use in civil aircraft	27.1	mp.m	742 2014	
8471 41 90 00	Other digital automatic data-processing	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8471 49 10 00	machines: Other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	
84/1 49 10 00	Other digital automatic data-processing machines, presented in the form of system:	NA	101	MEC-DSM	n.a
	For use in civil aircraft				
8471 49 90 00	Other digital automatic data-processing	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
0171 15 50 00	machines, presented in the form of system:	1171	151	WIEC BOW	11.4
	Other				
8471 50 10 00	Digital processing unit other than those of	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	subheadings No 847141 and 8471 49: For				
	use in civil aircraft				
8471 50 90 00	Other digital processing unit other than	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	those of subheadings No 847141 and 8471				
	49				
8471 60 10 00	Input or output units, whether or not	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	containing storage units in the same				
0.471 60 40 00	housing: For use in civil aircraft	374	TED TE	ME BOX	
8471 60 40 00	Other Input or output units, Printers	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8471 60 50 00	Other Input or output units, Keyboards	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8471 60 90 00	Other Input or output units: Other, other	NA NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8471 70 10 00	Storage units: For use in civil aircraft	NA NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8471 70 40 00	Other Storage units: Central storage units	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a

		Tyma of	Inatifi	Covernment	Time-
Tariff No.	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	table for
					removal
8471 70 51 00	Other Storage units: Disc storage units:	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
0.471.70.52.00	Optical, including magneto-optical	NT A	TDT	ME DOM	
8471 70 53 00	Hard disk drives	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8471 70 59 00	Other Disc storage units: Other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8471 70 60 00	Magnetic tape storage units	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8471 70 90 00	Other Disc storage units: Other	NA NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8471 80 10 00	Other units of automatic data-processing machines: Peripheral	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8471 80 90 00	Other units of automatic data-processing machines: Other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8471 90 00 00	Other automatic data-processing machines and units thereof	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8476 21 00 00	Automatic beverage-vending machines: Incorporating heating or refrigerating devices	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8476 81 00 00	Other automatic goods-vending machines incorporating heating or refrigerating devices	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8504 31 31 00	Measuring transformers for voltage measurement	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8504 31 39 00	Measuring transformers, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8504 32 30 00	Measuring transformers, > 1 kVA -16 kVA	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8508 10 10 00	Drills of all kinds, contained electric motor, without an external source of power	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8508 10 91 00	Drills of all kinds, electro-pneumatic	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8508 10 99 00	Drills of all kinds, contained electric motor, without an external source of power, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8508 20 10 00	Chainsaws, contained electric motor	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8508 20 30 00	Circular saws, contained electric motor	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8508 20 90 00	Saws, contained electric motor, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8508 80 10 00	Other tools, with electric motor, of a kind used for working textile materials	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8508 80 30 00	Capable of operation without an external source of power	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8508 80 51 00	Angle grinders with electric motor	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8508 80 53 00	Belt sanders with electric motor	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8508 80 59 00	Grinders and sanders, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8508 80 70 00	Planers, with electric motor	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8508 80 80 00	Hedge trimmers and lawn edge cutters with electric motor	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8508 80 90 00	Other tools, with electric motor, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8509 10 10 00	Vacuum cleaners for a voltage of 110 V or more	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8509 10 90 00	Vacuum cleaners for a voltage of less than 110 V	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8509 20 00 00	Floor polishers with electric motor	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8509 30 00 00	Kitchen waste disposers with electric	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	motor				

		Townsof	T4:C:	Carrant	Time-
Tariff No.	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	table for
8509 40 00 00	Food grinders and mixers; fruit or	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	removal n.a
8309 40 00 00	vegetable juice extractors, with electric motor	NA	161	WIEC-BSWI	11.4
8509 80 00 00	Other domestic appliances with electric motor	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8510 10 00 00	Shavers with electric motor	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8510 20 00 00	Hair clippers with electric motor	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8510 30 00 00	Hair-removing appliances with electric motor	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8515 11 00 00	Electric soldering irons and guns	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8515 19 00 00	Brazing or soldering machines and apparatus, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8515 31 00 00	Fully or partly automatic machines and apparatus for arc welding of metal	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8515 39 10 00	For manual welding with coated electrodes, complete with welding or cutting devices	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8515 39 90 00	Other machines and apparatus for arc welding of metal	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 10 11 00	Instantaneous water heaters	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 10 19 00	Water heaters, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 10 90 00	Immersion heaters	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 21 00 00	Storage heating radiators	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 29 10 00	Electric space-heating liquid-filled radiators	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 29 50 00	Electric space-heating, convection heaters	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 29 91 00	Electric space-heating apparatus with built-in fan	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 29 99 00	Other electric space-heating apparatus	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 31 10 00	Drying hoods	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 31 90 00	Hair dryers, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 32 00 00	Other hair-dressing apparatus	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 33 00 00	Hand-drying apparatus	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 40 10 00	Steam smoothing irons	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 40 90 00	Electric smoothing irons, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 50 00 00	Microwave ovens	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 60 10 00	Cookers (incorporating at least an oven and a hob)	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 60 51 00	Hobs for building-in	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 60 59 00	Cooking plates, boiling rings and hobs, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 60 70 00	Grillers and roasters	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 60 80 00	Ovens for building-in	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 60 90 00	Other ovens; cookers, cooking plates, boiling rings; grillers and roasters, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 71 00 00	Coffee or tea makers appliances	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 72 00 00	Toasters	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 79 10 00	Plate warmers	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 79 20 00	Deep fat fryers	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 79 80 00	Other electro-thermic appliances, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8516 80 10 00	Electric heating resistors for anti-icing or de-icing, for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a

		<b></b>	×		Time-
Tariff No.	Description	Type of	Justifi-	Government	table for
	*	licence	cation	agency	removal
8516 80 90 00	Electric heating resistors, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8517 11 00 00	Line telephone sets with cordless handsets	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8517 19 10 00	Videophones	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8517 19 90 00	Other telephone sets	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8517 21 00 00	Facsimile machines	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8517 30 00 00	Telephonic or telegraphic switching	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	apparatus				
8519 10 00 00	Coin- or disc-operated record-players	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8519 21 00 00	Other record-players without loudspeaker	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8519 29 00 00	Other record-players	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8519 31 00 00	Turntables (record-decks) with automatic	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	record-changing mechanism				
8519 39 00 00	Turntables (record-decks), other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8519 40 00 00	Transcribing machines	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8519 92 00 00	Other sound reproducing apparatus	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	pocket-size cassette-players				
8519 93 30 00	Cassette-type sound reproducing apparatus	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
071000	for used in motor vehicles				
8519 93 39 00	Other sound reproducing apparatus, of a	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
0510 02 00 00	kind used in motor vehicles, other	NT A	TDT.	ME DOM	
8519 93 80 00	Other, cassette-type	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8519 99 10 00	Other sound reproducing apparatus with	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9510 00 00 00	laser reading system	NA	TBT	ME DCM	
8519 99 90 00 8520 10 00 00	Other sound reproducing apparatus, other  Dictating machines not capable of	NA NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8520 10 00 00	Dictating machines not capable of operating without an external source of	NA	111	MEc-BSM	n.a
	power				
8520 20 00 00	Telephone answering machines	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8520 32 00 00	Digital audio type	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8520 32 11 00	Digital audio type, cassette-type, capable	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
0320 32 11 00	of operating without an external source of	1171	IDI	WIEC BOW	11.0
	power				
8520 32 19 00	Digital audio type, cassette-type, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8520 32 30 00	Digital audio type, cassette-type, pocket-	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	size recorders				
8520 32 50 00	Digital audio type, cassette-type, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8520 32 91 00	Digital audio type, cassette-type, Using	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	magnetic tapes on reels, allowing sound				
	recording or reproduction either at a single				
	speed of 19 cm per second or at several				
	speeds if those comprise only 19 cm per				
	second and lower speeds				
8520 32 99 00	Digital audio type, cassette-type, other,	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
0.500.00.00	other	7.7.4	mr	) (F. D	
8520 33 00 00	Other magnetic tape recorders, cassette-	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
0500 00 11 00	type	7.7.4	TTD.TT	ME BOX	
8520 33 11 00	Other magnetic tape recorders, cassette-	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	type, with built-in amplifier and one or				
	more built-in loudspeakers, capable of operating without an external source of				
	power				
	power	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	

		1			Time-
Tariff No.	Description	Type of	Justifi-	Government	table for
Tariff 140.	Description	licence	cation	agency	removal
8520 33 19 00	Other magnetic tape recorders, cassette-	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
0320 33 17 00	type, with built-in amplifier and one or	1111	IDI	WILL DOWN	11.0
	more built-in loudspeakers, other				
8520 33 30 00	Other, cassette-type, pocket-size recorders	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8520 33 90 00	Other, cassette-type, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8520 39 00 00	Other magnetic tape recorders with sound	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	reproducing apparatus				
8520 39 10 00	Other magnetic tape recorders with sound	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	reproducing apparatus, using magnetic				
	tapes on reels, allowing sound recording				
	or reproduction either at a single speed of				
	19 cm per second or at several speeds if				
	those comprise only 19 cm per second and				
	lower speeds				
8520 39 90 00	Other magnetic tape recorders with sound	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	reproducing apparatus,				
8520 90 10 00	Other magnetic tape recorders for use in	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	civil aircraft				
8520 90 90 00	Other magnetic tape recorders and other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	sound reproducing apparatus, other				
8521 10 10 00	Video recording or reproducing apparatus	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	magnetic tape-type for civil aircraft				
8521 10 30 10	Video recording or reproducing apparatus	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	magnetic tape-type, using tape of a width				
	not exceeding 1.3 cm and				
	allowing recording or reproduction at a				
	tape speed not exceeding 50 mm per				
	second, new				
8521 10 80 10	Video recording or reproducing apparatus	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	magnetic tape-type, other, new				
8521 10 90 10	Video recording or reproducing apparatus	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	magnetic tape-type, other, new				
8521 90 00 10	Video recording or reproducing apparatus,	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	other, new				
8525 20 91 00	Radio-telegraphic or radio-telephonic	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	apparatus for cellular networks (mobile				
	telephones)				
8527 21 10 00	Radio-broadcast receivers with laser sound	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
0505 01 00 00	reading system	37.4	mr. m	100 000	
8527 21 20 00	Radio-broadcast receivers, combined with	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	sound recording or reproducing apparatus,				
	capable of receiving and decoding digital				
	Radio Data System signals, with laser				
8527 21 52 00	reading system  Padia broadcast receivers, combined with	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	no
0321213200	Radio-broadcast receivers, combined with	INA	IBI	MEC-BOM	n.a
	sound recording or reproducing apparatus, capable of receiving and decoding digital				
	Radio Data System signals, of the				
	cassette-type with an analogue and digital				
	reading system				
	reading by brein	<u> </u>			i

Tariff No.	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	Time- table for removal
8527 21 59 00	Radio-broadcast receivers, combined with sound recording or reproducing apparatus, capable of receiving and decoding digital Radio Data System signals, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8527 21 70 00	Radio-broadcast receivers, combined with sound recording or reproducing apparatus, other, with laser reading system	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8527 21 92 00	Radio-broadcast receivers, combined with sound recording or reproducing apparatus, other,	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8527 21 90 00	Radio-broadcast receivers combined with sound recording or reproducing apparatus, other, of the cassette-type with an analogue and digital reading system	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8527 21 98 00	Radio-broadcast receivers combined with sound recording or reproducing apparatus, other, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8527 29 00 00	Radio-broadcast receivers not capable of operating without an external source, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8527 90 10 00	Other apparatus for radio-telephony or radio-telegraphy, for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8527 90 92 00	Portable receivers for calling, alerting or paging	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8527 90 99 00	Other apparatus for radio-telephony or radio-telegraphy, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 12 10 00	Reception apparatus for television, whether or not incorporating radio-broadcast receivers or sound or video recording or reproducing apparatus, colour, television projection equipment	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 12 20 00	Apparatus incorporating a video recorder or reproducer	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 12 52 10	Television projection equipment colour, with diagonal not exceeding 42 cm, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 12 54 10	Television projection equipment colour, with diagonal >42 cm - 52 cm, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 12 56 10	Television projection equipment colour, with diagonal > 52 cm - 72 cm, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 12 58 10	Television projection equipment, colour, with diagonal > 72 cm, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 12 62 00	Television projection equipment, colour, other, with scanning parameters not exceeding 625 lines, with a diagonal measurement of the screen, not exceeding 75 cm	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 12 66 00	Television projection equipment, colour, other, with scanning parameters not exceeding 625 lines, with a diagonal measurement of the screen, exceeding 75 cm	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a

Tariff No.	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	Time- table for removal
8528 12 72 00	Television projection equipment, colour, other, with scanning parameters exceeding 625 lines, with a vertical resolution of less than 700 lines	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 12 76 00	Television projection equipment, colour, other, with scanning parameters exceeding 625 lines, with a vertical resolution of 700 lines or more	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 12 81 00	Television projection equipment, colour, other, with a screen width/height ratio less than 1,520	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 12 89 00	Television projection equipment, colour, other, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 12 90 00	Video tuners, electronic assemblies for incorporation into automatic data-processing machines	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 12 93 00	Video tuners, electronic assemblies for incorporation into automatic data-processing machines, other, digital (including mixed digital and analogue)	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 12 95 00	Video tuners, electronic assemblies for incorporation into automatic data-processing machines, other, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 12 98 00	Other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 13 00 10	Television projection equipment, black and white or other monochrome, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 21 00 10	Video monitors, colour, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 21 14 10	Video monitors, colour, with a screen width/height ratio less than 1.5 new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 21 16 10	Video monitors, colour, with scanning parameters not exceeding 625 lines, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 21 18 10	Video monitors, colour, with scanning parameters exceeding 625 lines, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 21 90 10	Video monitors, colour, other, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 22 00 10	Video monitors, black and white or other monochrome, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 30 00 10	Video projectors, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 30 05 10	Video projectors, operating by means of flat panel display (for example a liquid crystal device), capable of displaying digital information generated by automatic data processing machine, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8528 30 20 10	Video projectors, other, colour, new	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8529 10 10 00	Aerials and aerial reflectors of all kinds for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8529 10 20 00	Telescopic and whip-type Aerials for portable apparatus or for app. for fitting in motor vehicles	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8529 10 31 00	Outside Aerials for radio or television broadcast receivers for reception via satellite	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8529 10 39 00	Outside Aerials for radio or television broadcast receivers, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a

Tariff No.	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	Time- table for removal
8529 10 40 00	Inside aerials for radio or television broadcast receivers, including built-in types	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8529 10 50 00	Aerials, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8529 10 70 00	Aerial filters and separators	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8529 10 90 00	Aerials and aerial reflectors of all kinds, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8536 61 10 00	Edison lamp-holders	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
8536 61 90 00	Other lamp-holders	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9007 11 00 00	Cameras for film of less than 16 mm width or for double-8 mm film	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9007 19 00 00	Other cinematographic cameras	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9007 20 00 00	Projectors	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9009 11 00 00	Electrostatic photocopying apparatus, operating by reproducing the original Image, direct process	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9009 12 00 00	Electrostatic photocopying apparatus operating by reproducing the original Image, indirect process	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9009 21 00 00	Other photocopying apparatus incorporating an optical system	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9009 22 00 00	Photocopying apparatus incorporating an optical system or of the contact type and thermo-copying apparatus, electrostatic photocopying apparatus, of the contact type	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9009 22 10 00	Blueprinters and diazocopiers	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9009 22 90 00	Other photocopying apparatus of the contact type	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9025 19 99 00	Hydrometers and similar floating instruments, thermometers, pyrometers, barometers, hygrometers and psychrometers, recording or not, and any combination of these instruments, thermometers and pyrometers, not combined with other instruments, other, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9026 20 50 00	Instruments and apparatus for measuring or checking the flow, level, pressure or other variables of liquids or gases (for example, flow meters, level gauges, manometers, heat meters), excluding instruments and apparatus of heading No. 9014, 9015, 9028 or 9032, for measuring or checking pressure, spiral or metal diaphragm type pressure gauges	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a

		Type of	Justifi-	Government	Time-
Tariff No.	Description	licence	cation	agency	table for removal
9027 20 00 00	Instruments and apparatus for physical or chemical analysis (for example, polarimeters, refractometers, spectrometers, gas or smoke analysis apparatus); instruments and apparatus for measuring or checking viscosity, porosity, expansion, surface tension or the like; instruments and apparatus for measuring for measuring or checking quantities of heat, sound or light (including exposure meters); microtomes, chromatographs and electrophoresis instruments	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9027 50 00 00	Instruments and apparatus for physical or chemical analysis (for example, polarimeters, refractometers, spectrometers, gas or smoke analysis apparatus); instruments and apparatus for measuring or checking viscosity, porosity, expansion, surface tension or the like; instruments and apparatus for measuring for measuring or checking quantities of heat, sound or light (inclu-ding exposure meters);microtomes, other instruments and apparatus using optical radiations (UV, visible, IR)	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9027 80 97 00	Other instruments and apparatus, electronic, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9009 30 00 00	Thermo-copying apparatus	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9031 80 32 00	Measuring or checking instruments, appliances and machines, not specified or included elsewhere in this chapter; profile projectors, other instruments, appliances and machines, electronic, for measuring or checking geometrical quantities, for inspecting semiconductor wafers or devices or for inspecting photomasks or reticles used in manufacturing semiconductor devices	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9031 80 34 00	Measuring or checking instruments, appliances and machines, not specified or included elsewhere in this chapter; profile projectors, other, electronic, for measuring or checking geometrical quantities, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9031 80 91 00	Measuring or checking instruments, appliances and machines, not specified or included elsewhere in this chapter; profile projectors, other, electronic, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9015 10 10 00	Rangefinders, electronic	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9015 10 90 00	Other range finders	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9015 20 10 00	Theodolites and tacheometers, electronic	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9015 20 90 00	Other theodolites and tacheometers	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9015 30 10 00	Levels, electronic	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9015 30 90 00	Other levels	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a

		Type of	Justifi-	Government	Time-
Tariff No.	Description	licence	cation	agency	table for removal
9015 40 10 00	Photogrammetrical, surveying instruments and appliances, electronic	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9015 40 90 00	Other photogrammetrical, surveying instruments and appliances	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9015 80 11 00	Electronic meteorological, hydrological and geophysical instruments and apparatus	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9015 80 19 00	Other instruments, appliances surveying, electronic	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9015 80 91 00	Instruments, appliances used in geodesy, topogr., surveying/ levelling; hydrograph. instrum.	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9015 80 93 00	Meteorological, hydrological and geophysical instruments and apparatus	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9015 80 99 00	Other instruments, appliances surveying, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9015 90 00 00	Parts and accessories for surveying instruments and appliances	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9016 00 10 00	Balances	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9016 00 90 00	Parts and accessories for balances of a sensitivity of 5 cg	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9017 30 10 00	Micrometers and callipers	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9017 30 90 00	Other (excluding gauges without adjustable devices of heading No 9031)	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9017 80 10 00	Measuring rods and tapes and divided scales	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9017 80 90 00	Other instruments drawing, marking-out or mathematical calculating instruments	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9018 31 10 00	Syringes with or without needles of plastics	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9018 31 90 00	Syringes with or without needles, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9018 90 10 00	Instruments and apparatus for measuring blood-pressure	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9024 10 10 00	Electronic machines and appliances for testing metals	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9024 10 91 00	Machines and appliances for testing metals, universal or for tensile tests	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9024 10 93 00	Machines and appliances for testing metals for hardness tests	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9024 10 99 00	Other machines and appliances for testing metals	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9024 80 10 00	Other machines and appliances for testing materials, electronic	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9024 80 91 00	Other machines and appliances for testing textiles, paper or paperboard	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9024 80 99 00	Other machines and appliances for testing materials, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9024 90 00 00	Parts and accessories of machines and appliances for testing materials	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9025 11 10 00	Thermometers and pyrometers, liquid- filled, for direct reading for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9025 11 91 00	Clinical or veterinary thermometers, liquid-filled	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a

Tariff No.	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	Time- table for
9025 11 99 00	Other, thermometers and pyrometers, liquid-filled	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9025 19 10 00	Thermometers and pyrometers, for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9025 19 91 00	Other thermometers and pyrometers, electronic	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9025 19 99 00	Other thermometers and pyrometers, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9025 80 15 00	Hydrometers and similar floating instruments, for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9025 80 20 00	Barometers, not combined with other instruments	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9025 80 91 00	Hydrometers and similar floating instruments, electronic	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9025 80 99 00	Hydrometers and similar floating instruments, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9025 90 10 00	Parts and accessories of hydrometers and similar floating instruments, for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9025 90 90 00	Parts and accessories of hydrometers and similar floating instruments, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9026 10 10 00	Instruments/apparatus for measuring /checking the flow or level of liquids for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9026 10 51 00	Electronic flow meters	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9026 10 59 00	Other electronic instruments and apparatus for measuring /checking the flow or level of liquids	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9026 10 91 00	Other instruments and apparatus for flow meters	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9026 10 99 00	Other instruments and apparatus for measuring /checking the flow or level of liquids, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9026 20 10 00	Instruments /apparatus for measuring or checking pressure, for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9026 20 30 00	Electronic instruments/apparatus for measuring or checking pressure	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9026 20 51 00	Appliances for measuring and non- automatically regulating tyre pressure	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9026 20 59 00	Other spiral/metal diaphragm type pressure gauges	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9026 20 90 00	Other instruments and apparatus for measuring or checking pressure, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9026 80 10 00	Other instruments or apparatus for measuring variables of liquids or gases, use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9026 80 91 00	Other instruments or apparatus for measuring variables of liquids or gases, electronic	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9026 80 99 00	Other instruments or apparatus for measuring variables of liquids or gases, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9027 10 10 00	Electronic gas or smoke analysis apparatus	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9027 10 90 00	Other gas or smoke analysis apparatus	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a

		T. 6	T .: C'	G .	Time-
Tariff No.	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	table for removal
9027 20 10 00	Chromatographs	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9027 20 90 00	Electrophoresis instruments	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9027 30 00 00	Spectrometers, spectrophotomet.,	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
	spectrographs using optical radiations (UV, visible, IR)				
9027 40 00 00	Exposure meters	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9027 80 11 00	Electronic pH meters, rH meters and other apparatus or measuring conductivity	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9027 80 91 00	Viscometers, porosimeters and expansion meters	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9027 80 98 00	Other instruments and apparatus for physical or chemical analysis, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9028 10 00 00	Gas meters	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9028 20 00 00	Liquid meters	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9028 30 11 00	Electricity meters for alternating current for single-phase	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9028 30 19 00	Electricity meters for alternating current for multi-phase	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9028 30 90 00	Electricity meters, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9029 10 10 00	Electric or electronic revolution counters, for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9029 10 90 00	Other revolution counters, production counters, taximeters, milometers, pedometers	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9029 20 31 00	Speed indicators for vehicles	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9029 20 39 00	Other peed indicators and tachometers	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 10 10 00	Instruments and apparatus for measuring or detecting ionizing radiations for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 10 90 00	Instruments and apparatus for measuring or detecting ionizing radiations, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 20 10 00	Cathode-ray oscilloscopes and cathode-ray oscillographs for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 20 90 00	Cathode-ray oscilloscopes and cathode-ray oscillographs, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 31 10 00	Multimeters, without a recording device for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 31 90 00	Multimeters, without a recording device, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 39 10 00	Other instruments/apparatus, for measuring or checking electrical quantities, for civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 39 30 00	Other instruments/apparatus, for measuring or checking electrical quantities, electronic	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 39 91 00	Voltmeters	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 39 99 00	Other instruments/apparatus, for measuring or checking electrical quantities, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 40 10 00	Instruments, apparatus, specially designed for telecommunications for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a

Tariff No.	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	Time- table for removal
9030 40 90 00	Instruments, apparatus, specially designed for telecommunications, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 83 10 00	Other instruments, apparatus for meas/checking electr. quantities, with a record. device for civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 83 90 00	Other instruments, apparatus for meas. or checking electrical quantities, with a recording device, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 89 10 00	Other instruments, apparatus for measuring or checking electrical quantities, for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 89 92 00	Other instruments, apparatus, for measuring or checking electrical quantities, electronic	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9030 89 99 00	Other instruments, apparatus, for measuring or checking electrical quantities, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9031 80 10 00	Other instruments, appliances and machines for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9031 80 31 00	Electronic instruments, appliances for measuring or checking geometrical quantities	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9031 80 39 00	Electronic instruments, appliances, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9031 80 50 00	Other instruments, appliances for measuring or checking geometrical quantities	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9031 80 99 00	Other instruments, appliances, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9101 91 00 10	Stop watches, with case of precious metal, electrically operated	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9101 99 00 10	Other personal watches, with case of precious metal, stop watches	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9102 91 00 10	Stop watches, electrically operated	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9102 99 00 10	Other, stop watches	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9106 10 00 00	Time-registers; time-recorders	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9106 20 00 00	Parking meters	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9106 90 10 00	Process-timers, stop-clocks and the like	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9106 90 90 00	Other apparatus for measuring, recording or otherwise indicating intervals of time, other	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a
9107 00 00 00	Time switches, with clock or watch movement or with synchronous motor	NA	TBT	MEc-BSM	n.a

## <u>Products Subject to Import Licenses Issued by the Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Water Economy - Administration for Plant Protection</u>

Tariff number	Description	Type of	Justifi-	Government	Timetable
Tarri number	Description	licence	cation	agency	for removal
3808 10 10 00	Based on pyrethroids	$NA^4$	SPS	$(MA-APP)^5$	n.a <sup>6</sup>
3808 10 20 00	Based on chlorinated hydrocarbons	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 10 30 00	Based on carbamates	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 10 40 00	Based on organophosphorus compounds	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 10 90 00	Other	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 20 10 00	Preparations based on copper compounds	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 20 15 00	Other	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 20 30 00	Based on dithiocarbamates	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 20 40 00	Based on benzimidazoles	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 20 50 00	Based on diazoles or triazoles	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 20 60 00	Based on diazines or morpholines	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 20 80 00	Other	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 30 11 00	Based on phenoxy-phytohormones	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 30 13 00	Based on triazines	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 30 15 00	Based on amides	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 30 17 00	Based on carbamates	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 30 21 00	Based on dinitroaniline derivates	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 30 23 00	Based on derivatives of urea, of uracil or of sulphonylurea	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 30 27 00	Other	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 30 30 00	Anti-sprouting products	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 30 90 00	Plant-growth regulators	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 90 10 00	Rodenticides	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a
3808 90 90 00	Other	NA	SPS	(MA-APP)	n.a

Non-Automatic
 Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Water Economy – Administration on Plant Protection
 Non-applicable

## <u>Products Subject to Import Licenses Issued by the Ministry for Agriculture, Forestry and Water Economy- Administration on Seeds and Seeding Materials</u>

		Т	I4:£:	C	Timetable
Tariff number	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government	for
		ncence	Cation	agency	removal
0601 10 10 00	Hyacinths	$NA^7$	SPS	MA-ASSM <sup>8</sup>	n.a <sup>9</sup>
0601 10 20 00	Narcissi	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0601 10 30 00	Tulips	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0601 10 40 00	Gladioli	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0601 10 90 00	Other	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0601 20 10 00	Chicory plants and roots	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0601 20 30 00	Orchids, hyacinths, narcissi and tulips	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0601 20 90 00	Other	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0602 10 10 00	Of wines	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0602 10 90 00	Other	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0602 20 10 00	Vine slips, grafted or rooted	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0602 20 90 00	Other	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0602 30 00 00	Rhododendrons and azaleas, grafted or	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
	not				
0602 40 10 00	Neither budded nor grafted	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0602 40 90 00	Budded or grafted	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0602 90 10 00	Mushroom spawn	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0602 90 20 00	Pineapple plants	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0602 90 30 00	Vegetable and strawberry plants	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0701 10 00 00	Potato seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0703 10 19 10	Onions for sowing	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0703 10 19 30	Arpadzik	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0703 20 00 10	Garlic seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0703 90 00 10	Leeks and other alliaceous vegetables for	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
	sowing				
0713 10 10 00	Peas (Pisum sativum) for sowing	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0713 33 10 00	Kidney beans, including white pea beans	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
	(Phaseolus vulgaris) for sowing				
0713 40 00 10	Lentils for sowing	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
0713 90 10 00	For sowing	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1001 10 00 10	Durum wheat for sowing	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1001 90 10 00	Spelt for sowing	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1001 90 91 00	Common wheat and meslin seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1002 00 00 10	Rye seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1003 00 10 00	Barley seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1004 00 00 10	Oats seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1005 10 11 00	Maize (corn) double hybrids and top	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
	cross hybrids				
1005 10 13 00	Maize (corn) three-cross hybrids	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1005 10 15 00	Maize (corn) simple hybrids	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1005 10 19 00	Other	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a

<sup>7</sup> Non-Automatic

9 Non-applicable

Ministry for Agriculture, Forestry and Water Economy - Administration on Seeds and Seeding Materials

					Timetable
Tariff number	Description	Type of	Justifi-	Government	for
Tailli liullioci	Description	licence	cation	agency	removal
1005 90 00 00	Other	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1006 10 10 00	Rice for sowing	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM MA-ASSM	n.a
1008 90 90 00	Triticale for sowing	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM MA-ASSM	n.a
1204 00 10 00	Linseed, whether or not broken for	NA NA	SPS	MA-ASSM MA-ASSM	n.a
1204 00 10 00	sowing	IVA	51.5	WA-ASSWI	π.α
1205 00 10 00	Rape or colza seeds, whether or not	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1203 00 10 00	broken for sowing	11/1	51.5	WIA-ASSWI	π.α
1206 00 10 00	Sunflower seeds, whether or not broken	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1200 00 10 00	for sowing	11/1	51.5	14171 7100141	11.0
1207 10 10 00	Palm nuts and kernels for sowing	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1207 20 10 00	Cotton seeds for sowing	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1207 20 10 00	Other	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1207 30 10 00	Castor oil seeds for sowing	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM MA-ASSM	n.a
1207 40 10 00	Sesamum seeds for sowing	NA NA	SPS	MA-ASSM MA-ASSM	n.a
1207 40 10 00	Mustard seeds for sowing	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM MA-ASSM	
1207 60 10 00	Safflower seeds for sowing	NA NA	SPS	MA-ASSM MA-ASSM	n.a
1207 91 10 00	Poppy seeds for sowing	NA NA	SPS		n.a
1207 91 10 00	Other		SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
		NA		MA-ASSM	n.a
1207 92 10 00	Shea nuts (karite nuts) for sowing	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1207 99 10 00	Other for sowing	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 11 00 00	Sugar beet seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 19 00 00	Other	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 21 00 00	Lucerne (alfalfa) seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 22 10 00	Red clover (Trifolium pratense L.) seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 22 80 00	Other	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 23 11 00	Meadow fescue (Festuca pratensis Huds.) seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 23 15 00	Red fescue (Festuca rubra L.) seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 23 80 00	Other	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 24 00 00	Kentucky blue grass (Poa pratensis L.) seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 25 10 00	Italian ryegrass (including westerwolds) (Lolium multiflorum Lam.)	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 25 90 00	Perennial ryegrass (Lolium perenne L.)	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 26 00 00	Timothy grass seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 29 10 00	Vetch seed; seeds of the genus Poa (Poa	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
120, 2, 10 00	palustris L.,Poa trivialis L.); cocksfoot	1,11	515	1,11111100111	11.0
	grass (Dactylis glomerata L.); bent grass				
	(Agrostis)				
1209 29 50 00	Lupine seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 29 80 00	Other	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 30 00 00	Seeds of herbaceous plants cultivated	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
	principally for their flowers				
1209 91 10 00	Kohlrabi seeds (Brassica oleracea L. var.	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
	caulorapa and gongylodes L.)				
1209 91 90 10	Tomato seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 91 90 30	Cucumber seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 91 90 70	Pepper seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 91 90 90	Other	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1209 99 99 10	Tobacco seed	NA	SPS	MA-ASSM	n.a
1207 77 77 10					

## <u>Products Subject to Import Licenses Issued by the Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Water Economy – Forestry Department</u>

Tariff no	Description	Type of licence	Justification	Government agency	Timetable for removal
0602 90 41 00	Forest trees	$NA^{10}$	SPS	MA-FD <sup>11</sup>	n.a. <sup>12</sup>
1209 99 10 00	Forest-tree seeds	NA	SPS	MA-FD	n.a.

Non-Automatic
Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Water Economy – Forestry Department
Non-applicable

## <u>List of products subjected to licenses issued by the</u> <u>Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Water Economy - Veterinary Administration</u>

Tariff no	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	Timetable for removal
0101	Live horses, asses, mules and hinnies	NA <sup>13</sup>	SPS	MA-VA <sup>14</sup>	n.a <sup>15</sup>
0102	Live bovine animals	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0103	Live swine	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0104	Live sheep and goats	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0105	Live poultry, that is to say, fowls of the species Gallus domesticus, ducks, geese, turkeys and guinea fowls	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0106	Other live animals	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0201	Meat of bovine animals, fresh or chilled	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0202	Meat of bovine animals, frozen	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0203	Meat of swine, fresh, chilled or frozen	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0204	Meat of sheep or goats, fresh, chilled or frozen	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0205	Meat of horses, asses, mules or hinnies, fresh, chilled or frozen	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0206	Edible offal of bovine animals, swine, sheep, goats, horses, asses, mules or hinnies, fresh, chilled or frozen	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0207	Meat and edible offal, of the poultry of heading No 0105, fresh, chilled or frozen	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0208	Other meat and edible meat offal, fresh, chilled or frozen	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0209	Pig fat, free of lean meat, and poultry fat, not rendered or otherwise extracted, fresh, chilled, frozen, salted, in brine, dried or smoked	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0210	Meat and edible meat offal, salted, in brine, dried or smoked; edible flours and meals of meat or meat offal	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0301	Live fish	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0302	Fish, fresh or chilled, excluding fish fillets and other fish meat of heading No 0304	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0303	Fish, frozen, excluding fish fillets and other fish meat of heading No 0304	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0304	Fish fillets and other fish meat (whether or not minced), fresh, chilled or frozen	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a

<sup>13</sup> Non-Automatic
14 Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Water Economy - Veterinary Administration
15 non-applicable

Tariff no	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	Timetable for removal
0305	Fish, dried, salted or in brine; smoked fish, whether or not cooked before or during the smoking process; flours, meals and pellets of fish, fit for human consumption	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0306	Crustaceans, whether in shell or not, live, fresh, chilled, frozen, dried, salted or in brine; crustaceans, in shell, cooked by steaming or by boiling in water, whether or not chilled, frozen, dried, salted or in brine; flours, meals and pellets of crustaceans, fit for human consumption	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0307	Molluscs, whether in shell or not, live, fresh, chilled, frozen, dried, salted or in brine; aquatic invertebrates other than crustaceans and molluscs, live, fresh, chilled, frozen, dried, salted or in brine; flours, meals and pellets of aquatic invertebrates other than crustaceans, fit for human consumption	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0401	Milk and cream, not concentrated nor containing added sugar or other sweetening matter	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0402	Milk and cream, concentrated or containing added sugar or other sweetening matter	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0403	Buttermilk, curdled milk and cream, yoghurt, kephir and other fermented or acidified milk and cream, whether or not concentrated or containing added sugar or other sweetening matter or flavoured or containing added fruit, nuts or cocoa	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0404	Whey, whether or not concentrated or containing added sugar or other sweetening matter; products consisting of natural milk constituents, whether or not containing added sugar or other sweetening matter, not elsewhere specified or included	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0405	Butter and other fats and oils derived from milk: dairy spreads	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0406	Cheese and curd	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0407	Birds' eggs, in shell, fresh, preserved or cooked	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0408	Birds' eggs, not in shell, and egg yolks, fresh, dried, cooked by steaming or by boiling in water, moulded, frozen or otherwise preserved, whether or not containing added sugar or other sweetening matter	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0409 00 00 00	Natural honey	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a

Tariff no	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	Timetable for
0410 00 00 00	Edible products of animal origin, not	NA	SPS	MA-VA	removal n.a
0501 00 00 00	elsewhere specified or included  Human hair, unworked, whether or not washed or scoured; waste of human	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0502	hair Pigs', hogs' or boars' bristles and hair; badger hair and other brush making	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0503 00 00 00	hair; waste of such bristles or hair  Horsehair and horsehair waste, whether or not put up as a layer with or without supporting material	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0504 00 00 00	Guts, bladders and stomachs of animals (other than fish), whole and pieces thereof, fresh, chilled frozen, salted, in brine, dried or smoked	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
0505	Skins and other parts of birds, with their feathers or down, feathers and parts of feathers (whether or not with trimmed edges) and down, not further worked than cleaned, disinfected or treated for preservation; powder and waste of feathers or parts of feathers	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1501 00	Pig fat (including lard) and poultry fat, other than that of heading No 0209 to 1503	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1502 00	Fats of bovine animals, sheep or goats, other than those of heading No 1503	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1503 00	Lard stearin, lard oil, oleostearin, oleo- oil and tallow oil, not emulsified or mixed or otherwise prepared	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1504	Fats and oils and their fractions, of fish or marine mammals, whether or not refined, but not chemically modified	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1505	Wool grease and fatty substances derived therefrom (including lanolin)	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1506 00 00 00	Other animal fats and oils and their fractions, whether or not refined, but not chemically modified	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1507	Soya-bean oil and its fractions, whether or not refined, but not chemically modified	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1508	Ground-nut oil and its fractions, whether or not refined, but not chemically modified	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1509	Olive oil and its fractions, whether or not refined, but not chemically modified	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1510 00	Other oils and their fractions, obtained solely from olives, whether or not refined, but not chemically modified, including blends of these oils or fractions with oils or fractions of heading No 1509	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a

Tariff no	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	Timetable for removal
1515	Other fixed vegetable fats and oils (including jojoba oil) and their fractions, whether or not refined, but not chemically modified	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1516	Animal or vegetable fats and oils and their fractions, partly or wholly hydrogenated, inter- esterified, reesterified or elaidinized, whether or not refined, but not further prepared	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1517	Margarine; edible mixtures or preparations of animal or vegetable fats or oils or of fractions of different fats or oils of this Chapter, other than edible fats or oils or their fractions of heading No 1516	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1518	Animal or vegetable fats and oils and their fractions, boiled, oxidised, dehydrated, sulphurised, blown, polymerised by heat in vacuum or in inert gas or otherwise chemically modified, excluding those of heading No. 1516; inedible mixtures or preparations of animal or vegetable fat or oils of fractions of different fats or oils of this chapter, not elsewhere specified or included	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1520 00 00 00	Glycerol, crude; glycerol waters and glycerol lyes	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1521	Vegetable waxes (other than triglycerides), beeswax, other insect waxes and spermaceti, whether or not refined or coloured	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1522 00	Degras; residues resulting from the treatment of fatty substances or animal or vegetable waxes	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1601 00	Sausages and similar products, of meat, meat offal or blood; food preparations based on these products	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1602	Other prepared or preserved meat, meat offal or blood	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1603 00	Extracts and juices of meat, fish or crustaceans, molluscs or other aquatic invertebrates	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1604	Prepared or preserved fish; caviar and caviar substitutes prepared from fish eggs	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
1605	Crustaceans, molluscs and other aquatic invertebrates, prepared or preserved	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a

Tariff no	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	Timetable for removal
4101	Raw hides and skins of bovine or equine animals (fresh, or salted, dried, limed, pickled or otherwise preserved, but not tanned, parchment- Adressed or further prepared), whether or not dehaired or split	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4102	Raw skins of sheep or lambs (fresh, or salted, dried, limed, pickled or otherwise preserved, but not tanned, parchment-dressed or further prepared), whether or not with wool on or split, other than those excluded by Note 1 (c) to this Chapter	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4103	Other raw hides and skins (fresh, or salted, dried, limed, pickled or otherwise preserved, but not tanned, parchment-dressed or further prepared), whether or not dehaired or split, other than those excluded by Note 1 (b) or 1 (c) to this Chapter	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4104	Leather of bovine or equine animals, without hair on, other than leather of heading No 4108 or 4109	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4105	Sheep or lamb skin leather, without wool on, other than leather of heading No 4108 or 4109	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4106	Goat or kid skin leather, without hair on, other than leather of heading No 4108 or 4109	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4107	Leather of other animals, without hair on, other than leather of heading No 4108 or 4109	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4108	Chamois (including combination chamois) leather	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4109 00 00 00	Patent leather and patent laminated leather; metallized leather	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4110 00 00 00	Parings and other waste of leather or of composition leather, not suitable for the manufacture of leather articles; leather dust, powder and flour	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4111 00 00 00	Composition leather with a basis of leather or leather fibre, in slabs, sheets or strip, whether or not in rolls	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4201	Saddlery and harness for any animal (including traces, leads, knee pads, muzzles, saddle cloths, saddle bags, dog coats and the like), of any material	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a

Tariff no	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	Timetable for removal
4202	Trunks, suit-cases, vanity-cases, executive-cases, brief-cases, school satchels, spectacle cases, binocular cases, camera cases, musical instrument cases, gun cases, holsters and similar containers; travelling-bags, toilet bags, rucksacks, handbags, shopping-bags, wallets, purses, mapcases, cigarette-cases, tobaccopouches, tool bags, sports bags, bottle-cases, jewellery boxes, powder-boxes, cutlery cases and similar containers, of leather or of composition leather, of sheeting of plastics, of textile materials, of vulcanized fibre or of paperboard, or wholly or mainly covered with such materials or with paper: Trunks, suitcases, vanity cases, executive- cases, brief-cases, school satchels and similar containers	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4203	Articles of apparel and clothing accessories, of leather or of composition leather	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4204 00	Articles of leather, or of composition leather, of a kind used in machinery or mechanical appliances or for other technical uses	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4205 00 00 00	Other articles of leather or of composition leather	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4206	Articles of gut (other than silk-worm gut), of goldbeater's skin, of bladders or of tendons	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4301	Raw furskins (including heads, tails, paws and other pieces or cuttings, suitable for furriers' use), other than raw hides and skins of heading No 4101, 4102 or 4103	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4302	Tanned or dressed furskins (including heads, tails, paws and other pieces or cuttings), unassembled, or assembled (without the addition of other materials) other than those of heading No 4303	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4303	Articles of apparel, clothing accessories and other articles of furskin	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
4304	Artificial fur and articles thereof	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5001 00 00 00	Silk-worm cocoons suitable for reeling	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5002 00 00 00	Raw silk (not thrown)	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5003	Silk waste (including cocoons unsuitable for reeling, yarn waste and garnetted stock)	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5004 00	Silk yarn (other than yarn spun from silk waste) not put up for retail sale	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a

Tariff no	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency	Timetable
Turri no	-				removal
5005	Yarn spun from silk waste, not put up for retail sale	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5006 00	Silk yarn and yarn spun from silk waste, put up for retail sale; silk-worm gut	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5007	Woven fabrics of silk or of silk waste	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5101	Wool, not carded or combed	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5102	Fine or coarse animal hair, not carded or combed	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5103	Waste of wool or of fine or coarse animal hair, including yarn waste but excluding garnetted stock	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5104 00 00 00	Garnetted stock of wool or of fine or coarse animal hair	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5105	Wool and fine or coarse animal hair, carded or combed (including combed wool in fragments)	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5106	Yarn of carded wool, not put up for retail sale	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5107	Yarn of combed wool, not put up for retail sale	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5108	Yarn of fine animal hair (carded or combed), not put up for retail sale	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5109	Yarn of wool or of fine animal hair, put up for retail sale	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5110 00 00 00	Yarn of coarse animal hair or of horsehair (including gimped horsehair yarn), whether or not put up for retail sale	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5111	Woven fabrics of carded wool or of carded fine animal hair	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5112	Woven fabrics of combed wool or of combed fine animal hair	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
5113 00 00 00	Woven fabrics of coarse animal hair or of horsehair	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
6701 00 00 00	Skins and other parts of birds with their feathers or down, feathers, parts of feathers, down and articles thereof (other than goods of heading No 0505 and worked quills and scapes)	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
6702	Artificial flowers, foliage and fruit and parts thereof; articles made of artificial flowers, foliage or fruit	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
6703 00 00 00	Human hair, dressed, thinned, bleached or otherwise worked; wool or other animal hair or other textile materials, prepared for use in making wigs or the like	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a
6704	Wigs, false beards, eyebrows and eyelashes, switches and the like, of human or animal hair or of textile materials; articles of human hair not elsewhere specified or included	NA	SPS	MA-VA	n.a

## **ATTACHMENT 8 Products Subject to Import Licenses Issued by the Ministry of Health**

Tariff number	Description	Type of	Justifi-	Government agency/	Timetable for
Tailli liullibei	Description	licence	cation	agency/ agencies	removal
1211 90 99 10	Other - see list of names of NPS	NA <sup>16</sup>	TBT	MH-BM <sup>17</sup>	n.a <sup>18</sup>
1211 90 99 20	Other - poppy cocoons	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
1301 90 90 10	Cannabis-resin;	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
1302 11 00 00	Vegetable saps and extracts – opium	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
1302 19 98 10	See list of names of NPS	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2833 25 00 00	Other sulphates of copper	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2904 20 00 00	Derivatives containing only nitro or only	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	nitroso groups				
2905 29 10 00	Allyl alcohol	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2905 29 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2905 50 20 10	Halogenated, sulphonated, nitrated or	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	nitrosated derivatives of acyclic alcohols				
	– Etchlorvinol				
2914 31 00 00	Phenylacetone (phenylpropan-2-one)	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2916 34 00 00	Phenylacetic acid and its salts	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2916 35 00 00	Esters of phenylacetic acid	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2920 90 85 10	Nitroglycerin	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2920 90 85 20	Other esters of nitric acid	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2921 49 90 10	Nitrogen-function compounds – amine-	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	function compounds; acyclic				
	monoamines and their derivatives; salts				
	thereof -see list of names of NPS				
2922 19 90 10	Nitrogen-function compounds - oxygen-	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	function amino-compounds: - amino-				
	alcohols, their ethers and esters, other				
	than those containing more than one				
	kind of oxygen function; salts thereof - see list of names of NPS				
2922 29 00 10	Nitrogen-function compounds – other –	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2922 29 00 10	see list of names of NPS	INA	111	MIH-DM	II.a
2922 30 00 10	Nitrogen-function compounds – amino-	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2722 30 00 10	aldehydes, amino-ketones and amino-	11/1	111	WIII-DWI	π.α
	quinones, other than those containing				
	more than one kind of oxygen function;				
	salts thereof – see list of names of NPS				
2922 43 00 00	Nitrogen-function compounds –	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	anthranilic acid and its salts				
2922 49 70 10	Nitrogen-function compounds – other –	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	see list of names of NPS				

Non-Automatic

17 Ministry of Health – Bureau for Medicaments
Non - applicable

				Government	Timetable
Tariff number	Description	Type of	Justifi-	agency/	for
	r. ·	licence	cation	agencies	removal
2924 10 00 10	Nitrogen-function compounds –	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	carboxyamide-function compounds;				
	amide-function compounds of carbonic				
	acid - acyclic amides (including acyclic				
	carbamates) and their derivatives; salts				
	thereof – see list of names of NPS				
2924 22 00 00	Nitrogen-function compounds –	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	carboxyamide-function compounds;				
	amide-function compounds of carbonic				
2024 20 00 10	acid - 2-Acetamidobenzoic acid	NT A	TDT.	MILDM	
2924 29 90 10	Nitrogen-function compounds – other –	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2925 19 80 10	see list of names in NPS	NA	TBT	MILDM	
2925 19 80 10	Nitrogen-function compounds – carboxyimide-function compounds	NA	181	MH-BM	n.a
	(including saccharin and its salts) and				
	imine-function compounds – imides and				
	their derivatives; salts thereof –				
	glutetimid				
2926 90 99 10	Nitrogen-function compounds – nitrile-	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	function compounds - see list of names				
	in NPS				
2932 91 00 00	Isosafrole	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2932 92 00 00	1-(1,3-Benzodioxol-5-yl)propan-2-one	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2932 93 00 00	Piperonal	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2932 94 00 00	Safrole	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2932 99 80 10	See list of names in NPS	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2933 19 90 10	See list of names in NPS	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2933 29 90 10	See list of names in NPS	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2933 32 00 00	Piperidine and its salts	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2933 39 95 10	See list of names in NPS	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2933 40 90 10	See list of names in NPS	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2933 51 20 00	Phenobarbital (INN), barbital (INN) and	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	their salts				
2933 51 90 10	See list of names in NPS	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2933 59 70 10	See list of names in NPS	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2933 79 00 10	Other lactams - See list of names in NPS	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2933 90 95 10	See list of names in NPS	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2934 90 96 10 2935 00 10 00	See list of names in NPS	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM MH-BM	n.a
2933 00 10 00	- 3-{1-[7-(Hexadecylsulphonylamino)- 1H-indole-3- yl]-3-oxo-1H,3H-	NA	TBT	MIH-DM	n.a
	naphthol[1,8-cd]pyran-1-yl}-N,N-				
	dimethyl-1H-indole-7-sulphonimide				
2935 00 20 00	Metosulam (ISO)	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2935 00 20 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2936 10 00 00	Provitamins, unmixed	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2936 21 00 00	Vitamins A and their derivatives	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2936 22 00 00	Vitamin B1 and its derivatives	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2936 23 00 00	Vitamin B2 and its derivatives	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2936 24 00 00	D- or DL-Pantothenic acid (vitamin B3	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	or vitamin B5) and its derivatives				
2936 25 00 00	Vitamin B6 and its derivatives	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2936 26 00 00	Vitamin B1 2 and its derivatives	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a

	T				m: 11
Tau: 66	Description	Type of	Justifi-	Government	Timetable
Tariff number	Description	licence	cation	agency/	for removal
2936 27 00 00	Vitamin C and its derivatives	NA	TBT	agencies MH-BM	
2936 28 00 00	Vitamin E and its derivatives  Vitamin E and its derivatives	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a n.a
2936 29 10 00	Vitamin B9 and its derivatives	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2936 29 30 00	Vitamin H and its derivatives	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2936 29 90 00	Other	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2936 90 11 00	Natural concentrates of vitamins A + D	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2936 90 19 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2936 90 90 00	Intermixtures, whether or not in any	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2730 70 70 00	solvent	11/1	111	WIII-BWI	11.4
2937 10 00 10	Gonadotrophic hormones	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2937 10 00 90	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	Adrenal cortical hormones and their	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	derivatives:				
2937 21 00 00	Cortisone, hydrocortisone, prednisone	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	(dehydrocortisone) and prednisolone				
	(dehydrohydrocortisone)				
2937 22 00 00	Halogenated derivatives of adrenal	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	cortical hormones				
2937 29 00 10	Acetates cortisone or hydrocortisone	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2937 29 00 90	Other		TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	Other hormones and their derivatives;	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	other steroids used primarily as				
2027.01.00.00	hormones:	NIA	TBT	MILDM	
2937 91 00 00	Insulin and its salts	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2937 92 00 00 2937 99 00 00	Oestrogens and progestogens Other	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM MH-BM	n.a
2938 10 00 00	Rutoside (rutin) and its derivatives	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a n.a
2938 90	Other:	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2938 90 10 00	Digitalis glycosides	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2938 90 30 00	Glycyrrhizic acid and glycyrrhizates	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2938 90 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 10 00 10	See list of names of NPS	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 10 00 90	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 21 10 00	Quinine and quinine sulphate	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 21 10 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 29 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 29 00 00	Caffeine and its salts	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 41 00 00	Ephedrine and its salts	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 42 00 00	Pseudoephedrine (INN) and its salts	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 49 00 10	Katine	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 49 00 90	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 50 00 10	Fenetyllin	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 50 00 90	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 61 00 00	Ergometrine (INN) and its salts	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 62 00 00	Ergotamine (INN) and its salts	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 63 00 00	Lysergic acid and its salts	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 69 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 70 00 00	Nicotine and its salts	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 90 11 00	Crude cocaine	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 90 19 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 90 30 00	Emetine and its salts	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2939 90 90 10	See list of names of NPS	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a

				Covernment	Timatabla
Tariff number	Description	Type of	Justifi-	Government agency/	Timetable for
Tarri number	Description	licence	cation	agency/ agencies	removal
2939 90 90 90	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3001 10 10 00	Powdered	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3001 10 10 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3001 10 00 00	Of human origin	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3001 20 10 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3001 20 30 00	Of human origin-other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3001 90 10 00	Heparin and its salts	NA	TBT	MH-BM	
3001 90 91 00	Other	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a n.a
3001 90 99 00	Antisera	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3002 10 10 00	Other: Haemoglobin, blood globulins	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3002 10 91 00	and serum globulins	IVA	111	WIII-DWI	n.a
3002 10 95 00	Other: Of human origin	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3002 10 99 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3002 10 99 00	Vaccines for human medicine	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3002 20 00 00	Vaccines for veterinary medicine	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3002 90 10 00	Human blood	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3002 90 10 00	Animal blood prepared for therapeutic,	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3002 90 30 00	prophylactic or diagnostic uses	IVA	111	WIII-DWI	n.a
3002 90 50 00	Cultures of micro-organisms	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3002 90 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3003 10 00 00	Containing penicillins or derivatives	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3003 10 00 00	thereof, with a penicillanic acid	1171	IDI	WIII BIVI	11.4
	structure, or streptomycins or their				
	derivatives				
3003 20 00 00	Containing other antibiotics	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3003 31 00 00	Containing hormones or other products	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	of heading No 2937 but not containing				
	antibiotics – containing insulin				
3003 39 00 00	Containing hormones or other products	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	of heading No 2937 but not containing				
	antibiotics – other				
3003 40 00 00	Containing alkaloids or derivatives	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	thereof but not containing hormones or				
	other products of heading No 2937 or				
3003 90	antibiotics Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	no
3003 90 10 00	Containing iodine or iodine compounds	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3003 90 10 00		NA NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3003 90 90 00	Other Containing, as active substances, only	NA NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3004 10 10 00	penicillins or derivatives thereof with a	INA	101	MIH-DM	n.a
	penicillanic acid structure				
3004 10 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3004 10 00 00	Put up in forms or in packings of a kind	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3004 20 10 00	sold by retail	1171	111	WIII DIVI	11.4
3004 20 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	Containing hormones or other products	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	of heading No 2937 but not containing	- '			
	antibiotics:				
3004 31 10 00	Put up in forms or in packings of a kind	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
	sold by retail				
3004 31 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a

Tariff number	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency/agencies	Timetable for removal
3004 32 10 00	Put up in forms or in packings of a kind sold by retail	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3004 32 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3004 39 10 00	Put up in forms or in packings of a kind sold by retail	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3004 39 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3004 40 10 00	Put up in forms or in packings of a kind sold by retail	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3004 40 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3004 50 10 00	Put up in forms or in packings of a kind sold by retail	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3004 50 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3004 90 11 00	Containing iodine or iodine compounds	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3004 90 19 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3004 90 91 00	Containing iodine or iodine compounds	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3004 90 99 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3006 10 10 00	Sterile surgical catgut	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3006 10 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3006 20 00 00	Blood-grouping reagents	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3006 30 00 00	Opacifying preparations for X-ray examinations; diagnostic reagents designed to be administered to the patient	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3006 40 00 00	Dental cements and other dental fillings; bone reconstruction cements	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3006 50 00 00	First-aid boxes and kits	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3006 60 11 00	Put up in forms or in packings of a kind sold by retail	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3006 60 19 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3006 60 90 00	Based on spermicides	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3701 10 10 00	For X-ray: For medical, dental or veterinary use	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3702 10 00 00	For X-ray	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3808 10 10 00	Based on pyrethroids	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3808 10 20 00	Based on chlorinated hydrocarbons	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3808 10 30 00	Based on carbamates	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3808 10 40 00	Based on organophosphorus compounds	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3808 10 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3808 40 10 00	Based on quaternary ammonium salts	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3808 40 20 00	Based on halogenated compounds	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3808 40 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3808 90 10 00	Rodenticides	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
3808 90 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	MH-BM	n.a
2844 40 00 00	Radioactive isotopes: radioactive Ir 192; radioactive CS 137	NA	TBT	MH <sup>19</sup>	n.a.
2844 40 00 00	Radioactive isotopes: radioactive Ir 192; radioactive CS 137	NA	TBT	МН	n.a.
	RTG appliances and other appliances that produce ionised radiation	NA	TBT	МН	n.a.

<sup>19</sup> Ministry of Health

**ATTACHMENT 9 Products Subject to Import Licenses Issued by the Ministry of Environment** 

Tariff number	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency/ agencies	Timetable for removal
2524 00 30 00	Fibres, flakes or powder	NA <sup>20</sup>	TBT	$ME^{21}$	n.a <sup>22</sup>
2524 00 80 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2525 30 00 00	Mica waste	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2612 10 10 00	Uranium ores and pitchblende, and concentrates thereof, with a uranium content of more than 5 per cent by weight (Euratom	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2612 10 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2612 20 10 00	Monazite; urano-thorianite and other thorium ores and concentrates, with a thorium content of more than 20 per cent by weight (Euratom)	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2612 20 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2613 10 00 00	Roasted	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2613 90 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2618 00 00 00	Granulated slag (slag sand) from the manufacture of iron or steel	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2619 00 10 00	Blast-furnace dust	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2619 00 91 00	Waste suitable for the recovery of iron or manganese	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2619 00 93 00	Slag suitable for the extraction of titanium oxide	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2619 00 95 00	Waste suitable for the extraction of vanadium	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2619 00 99 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 11 00 00	Hard zinc spelter	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 19 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 21 00 00	Leaded gasoline sludges and leaded anti-knock compounds	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 29 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 30 00 00	Containing mainly copper	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 40 00 00	Containing mainly aluminium	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 60 00 00	Containing arsen, mercury, thalium or mix thereof of the kind used in extracting arsen or those metals or for the manifacture of chemical compounds thereof	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 91 00 00	Containing antimony, berilium, cadmium, chrome or mix thereof	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 99 10 00	Containing mainly nickel	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 99 20 00	Containing mainly niobium and tantalum	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 99 30 00	Containing mainly tungsten	NA	TBT	ME	n.a

Non-automatic
 Ministry of Environment and Spatial Planning
 non applicable

		Tomos	It.i.C:	Government	Time at alala
Tariff number	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	agency/	Timetable for removal
				agencies	101 Telliovai
2620 99 40 00	Containing mainly tin	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 99 50 00	Containing mainly molybdenum	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 99 60 00	Containing mainly titanium	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 99 70 00	Containing mainly cobalt	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 99 80 00	Containing mainly zirconium	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2620 99 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2621 10 00 00	Ash and residues of burning	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
	municipal waste				
2621 90 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2710 91 00 00	Containing polychlorinated biphenyls	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
	(PCBs), polychlorinated terphenyls				
	(PCTs) or polybrominated biphenyls				
	(PBBs)				
2710 99 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2713 90 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2827 20 00 00	Calcium chloride	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2835 31 00 00	Sodium triphosphate (sodium	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
	tripolyphosphate)				
2835 39 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 14 00 00	Carbon tetrachloride	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 19 10 00	1,1,1-Trichloroethane	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
	(methylchloroform)				
2903 30 33 00	Bromomethane (methyl bromide)	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 41 00 00	Trichlorofluoromethane	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 42 00 00	Dichlorodifluoromethane	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 43 00 00	Trichlorotrifluoroethanes	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 44 10 00	Dichlorotetrafluoroethanes	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 44 90 00	Chloropentafluoroethane	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 45 10 00	Other derivatives perhalogenated	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
	only with fluorine and chlorine:				
2002 45 15 00	Chlorotrifluoromethane	27.4	TTD TT	1.65	
2903 45 15 00	Other derivatives perhalogenated	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
	only with fluorine and chlorine:				
2002 45 20 00	Pentachlorofluoroethane	NT A	TDT	ME	
2903 45 20 00	Other derivatives perhalogenated only with fluorine and chlorine:	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
	Tetrachlorodifluoroethanes				
2903 45 25 00	Other derivatives perhalogenated	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 43 23 00	only with fluorine and chlorine:	NA	111	WIL	11.a
	Heptachlorofluoropropanes				
2903 45 30 00	Other derivatives perhalogenated	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2703 13 30 00	only with fluorine and chlorine:	1111	IDI	WIL	11.4
	Hexachlorodifluoropropanes				
2903 45 35 00	Other derivatives perhalogenated	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
	only with fluorine and chlorine:	·			
	Pentachlorotrifluoropropanes				
2903 45 40 00	Other derivatives perhalogenated	NA	TBT	ME	n.a.
	only with fluorine and chlorine:				
	Tetrachlorotetrafluoropropanes				
2903 45 45 00	Other derivatives perhalogenated	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
	only with fluorine and chlorine:				
	Trichloropentafluoropropanes				

Tariff number	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency/ agencies	Timetable for removal
2903 45 50 00	Other derivatives perhalogenated only with fluorine and chlorine: Dichlorohexafluoropropanes	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 45 55 00	Other derivatives perhalogenated only with fluorine and chlorine: Chloroheptafluoropropanes	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 45 90 00	Other derivatives perhalogenated only with fluorine and chlorine: Tetrafluoroetan	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 46 10 00	Bromochlorodifluoromethane	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 46 20 00	Bromotrifluoromethane	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 46 90 00	Dibromotetrafluoroethanes	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 47 00 00	Other perhalogenated derivatives	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 49 10 00	Halogenated only with fluorine and chlorine - of methane, ethane or propane	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 49 20 00	Halogenated only with fluorine and chlorine - other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 49 30 00	Halogenated only with fluorine and chlorine - of methane, ethane or propane	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 49 40 00	Halogenated only with fluorine and chlorine - other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
2903 49 80 00	Halogenated only with fluorine and chlorine - other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
3006 80 00 00	Waste pharmaceuticals	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
3104 20 10 00	With a potassium content evaluated as K2O, by weight, not exceeding 40% on the dry anhydrous	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
3104 20 50 00	With a potassium content evaluated as K2O, by weight, exceeding 40 per cent but not exceeding 62 per cent on the dry anhydrous product	NA	ТВТ	ME	n.a
3104 20 90 00	With a potassium content evaluated as K2O, by weight, exceeding 62 per cent on the dry anhydrous product	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
3824 71 00 00	Containing acyclic hydrocarbons perhalogenated only with fluorine and chlorine	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
3824 79 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
3825 10 00 00	Municipal waste	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
3825 20 00 00	Sewage sludge	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
3825 30 00 00	Clinical waste	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
3825 41 00 00	Halogenated	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
3825 49 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
3825 50 00 00	Wastes of metal pickling liquors, hydraulic fluids, brake and antifreeze fluids	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
3825 61 00 00	Mainly containing organic constituents	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
3825 69 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a

			<u> </u>	Government	
Tariff number	Description	Type of	Justifi-	agency/	Timetable
1 44111 1141110 01	2 esemption	licence	cation	agencies	for removal
3825 90 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
3915	All tariff lines	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
4004 00 00 00	Waste, parings and scrap of rubber	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
	(other than hard rubber) and powders				
	and granules obtained therefrom				
4012 11 00 00	Retreaded tyres of a kind used on	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
	motor cars (including station wagons				
	and racing cars)				
4012 12 00 00	Retreaded tyres of the kind used on	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
	buses or lorries				
4012 13 10 00	For use in civil aircraft:	NA		ME	n.a
4012 13 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
4012 19 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
4012 20 90 10	Of a kind used on motor cars	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
4012 20 90 30	Used pneumatic tyres of the kind	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
4040 50 05 55	used on buses or lorries				
4012 20 90 90	Used pneumatic tyres – other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
4012 90 20 00	Solid or cushion tyres and	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
4012 00 20 00	interchangeable tyre treads	27.4	TTD TT	) (T	
4012 90 30 00	Changeable protectors	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
4012 90 90 00	Tyre flaps	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
5003 10 00 00	Not carded or combed	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
5003 90 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
5103 10 10 00	Not carbonized	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
5103 10 90 00	Carbonised	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
5103 20 10 00	Yarn waste Not carbonized	NA NA	TBT TBT	ME ME	n.a
5103 20 91 00	Carbonised	NA NA			n.a
5103 20 99 00 5103 30 00 00	Waste of coarse animal hair	NA NA	TBT TBT	ME ME	n.a
5202 10 00 00	Yarn waste (including thread waste)	NA NA	TBT	ME	n.a
5202 91 00 00	Garnetted stock	NA NA	TBT	ME	n.a
5202 91 00 00	Other		TBT		n.a
5301 30 10 00	Tow	NA NA	TBT	ME ME	n.a
5301 30 10 00	Flax waste	NA NA	TBT	ME	n.a
5505 10 10 00	Of nylon or other polyamides	NA NA	TBT	ME	n.a
5505 10 30 00	Of polyesters	NA NA	TBT	ME	n.a
5505 10 50 00	Acrylic or modacrylic	NA NA	TBT	ME	n.a
5505 10 70 00	Of polypropylene	NA NA	TBT	ME	n.a
5505 10 90 00	Other	NA NA	TBT	ME	n.a n.a
5505 20 00 00	Of artificial fibres	NA NA	TBT	ME	
6309 00 00 00	Worn clothing and other worn	NA NA	TBT	ME	n.a
0309 00 00 00	articles	INA	111	IVIL	n.a
6310 10 10 00	Of wool or fine or coarse animal hair	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
6310 10 30 00	Of flax or cotton	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
6310 10 90 00	Of other textile materials	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
6310 90 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
6811 10 00 00	Corrugated sheets	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
6811 20 11 00	Sheets for roofing or walls, not	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
5511 25 11 00	exceeding 40x60 cm for roofing or	1111	12.	"	
	walls				
6811 20 80 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
6811 30 00 00	Tubes, pipes and tube or pipe fittings	NA	TBT	ME	n.a

			Y	Government	
Tariff number	Description	Type of licence	Justifi-	agency/	Timetable
	_	ncence	cation	agencies	for removal
6811 90 00 00	Other articles	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
6812 10 00 00	Fabricated asbestos fibres; mixtures	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
	with a basis of asbestos or with a				
	basis of asbestos and magnesium				
6812 20 00 00	Carbonate  Yarn and thread	NI A	TBT	ME	<b>m</b> 0
6812 30 00 00	Cords and string, whether or not	NA NA	TBT	ME ME	n.a
0812 30 00 00	plaited	NA	101	NIE	n.a
6812 40 00 00	Woven or knitted fabric	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
6812 50 00 00	Clothing, clothing accessories, footwear and headgear	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
6812 60 00 00	Paper, millboard and felt	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
6812 70 00 00	Compressed asbestos fibre jointing,	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
0012 70 00 00	in sheets or rolls	1111	151	1,12	11.0
6812 90 10 00	Other for use in civil aircraft	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
6812 90 30 00	Fabricated asbestos fibres; mixtures	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
	with a basis of asbestos or with a				
	basis of asbestos and magnesium				
6010 00 00 00	carbonate	374	mp.m	3.00	
6812 90 80 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
7001 00 10 00	Cullet and other waste and scrap of glass	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
7112 30 00 00	Ash containing precious metal or precious metal compounds	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
7204 10 00 00	Waste and scrap of cast iron	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
7204 21 10 00	Containing by weight 8 per cent or	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
,20.21.10.00	more of nickel	1,11	121	1,12	11100
7204 21 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
7204 29 00 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
7204 30 00 00	Waste and scrap of tinned iron or steel	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
7204 41 10 00	Turnings, shavings, chips, milling waste, sawdust and filings	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
7204 41 91 00	In bundles	NA	TBT	ME	n a
7204 41 91 00	Other	NA NA	TBT	ME	n.a n.a
7204 41 99 00	Fragmentized (shredded)	NA NA	TBT	ME	n.a
7204 49 30 00	In bundles	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
7204 49 91 00	Neither sorted nor graded	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
7204 49 99 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
7204 50 10 00	Of alloy steel	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
7204 50 90 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
7802 00 00 00	Lead waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
7902 00 00 00	Zinc waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8002 00 00 00	Tin waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8101 97 00 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8102 97 00 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8103 30 00 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8104 20 00 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8105 30 00 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8107 30 00 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8108 30 00 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8109 30 00 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a

		Type of	Justifi-	Government	Timetable
Tariff number	Description	licence	cation	agency/ agencies	for removal
8110 20 00 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8111 00 19 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8112 13 00 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8112 22 00 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8112 30 40 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8112 40 19 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8112 52 00 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8112 92 39 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8112 92 50 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8113 00 40 00	Waste and scrap	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8418 10 91 90	Combined refrigerator-freezers, fitted	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
0410 10 71 70	with separate external doors, of a capacity exceeding 340 litres, used	IVA	151	IVIL	11.α
8418 10 99 90	Other, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8418 21 10 90	Refrigerators, household type,	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
	compression-type, of a capacity exceeding 340 litres, used				
8418 21 51 90	Refrigerators, table model, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8418 21 59 90	Refrigerators, building-in type, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8418 21 91 90	Refrigerators, of a capacity not exceeding 250 litres, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8418 21 99 90	Refrigerators, exceeding 250 litres but not exceeding 340 litres, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8418 22 00 90	Refrigerators, absorption-type, electrical, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8418 29 00 90	Refrigerators, other, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8418 30 91 90	Freezers of the chest type, not exceeding 900 litres capacity, not exceeding 400 litres capacity, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8418 30 99 90	Freezers of the chest type, of a capacity exceeding 400 litres but not exceeding 800 litres, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8418 40 91 90	Freezers of the upright type, not exceeding 900 litres capacity: of a capacity not exceeding 250 litres, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8418 40 99 90	Freezers of the upright type, not exceeding 900 litres capacity, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8418 50 11 90	- Other refrigerating or freezing chests, cabinets, display counters, show-cases and similar refrigerating or freezing furniture, refrigerated show-cases and counters (incorporating a refrigerating unit or evaporator), For frozen food storage, used	NA	ТВТ	ME	n.a
8418 50 91 90	For deep freezing other than that of subheadings 841830 and 841840, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8418 50 99 90	For deep freezing other than that of subheadings 841830 and 841840, other, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a

Tariff number	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency/agencies	Timetable for removal
8512 10 30 90	Magnetic tape-type, Using tape of a width not exceeding 1,3 cm and allowing recording or reproduction at a tape speed not exceeding 50 mm per second, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8512 10 80 90	Magnetic tape-type, other, other, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8521 90 00 90	Other, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8528 12 52 90	Reception apparatus for television, whether or not incorporating radio-broadcast receivers or sound or video recording or reproducing apparatus, colour, other, with integral tube, with a screen width/height ratio less than 1,5, with a diagonal measurement of the screen, not exceeding 42 cm, used	NA	ТВТ	ME	n.a
8528 12 54 90	Reception apparatus for television, whether or not incorporating radio-broadcast receivers or sound or video recording or reproducing apparatus, colour, other, with integral tube, with a screen width/height ratio less than 1.5, with a diagonal measurement of the screen, exceeding 42 cm but not exceeding 52 cm, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8528 12 56 90	Reception apparatus for television, whether or not incorporating radio-broadcast receivers or sound or video recording or reproducing apparatus, colour, other, with integral tube, with a screen width/height ratio less than 1.5, with a diagonal measurement of the screen, exceeding 52 cm but not exceeding 72 cm, used	NA	ТВТ	ME	n.a
8528 12 58 90	Reception apparatus for television, whether or not incorporating radio-broadcast receivers or sound or video recording or reproducing apparatus, colour, other, with integral tube, with a screen width/height ratio less than 1.5, with a diagonal measurement of the screen, exceeding 72 cm, used	NA	ТВТ	ME	n.a
8528 13 00 90	Black and white or other monochrome, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8528 21 14 90	Video monitors, colour, with cathode-ray tube, with a screen width/height ratio less than 1.5, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a

Tariff number	Description	Type of licence	Justifi- cation	Government agency/ agencies	Timetable for removal
8528 21 16 90	Video monitors, colour, with cathode-ray tube, other, with scanning parameters not exceeding 625 lines, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8528 21 18 90	Video monitors, colour, with cathode-ray tube, other, With scanning parameters exceeding 625 lines, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8528 21 90 90	Video monitors, colour, other, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8528 22 00 90	Video monitors, black and white or other monochrome, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8528 30 05 90	Video projectors, operating by means of flat panel display (for example a liquid crystal device), capable of displaying digital information generated by automatic data processing machine, used	NA	ТВТ	ME	n.a
8528 30 20 90	Video projectors, other, colour, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8528 30 90 90	Video projectors, black and white or other monochrome, used	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8548 10 10 00	Spent primary cells, spent primary batteries	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8548 10 21 00	Lead-acid accumulators	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8548 10 29 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8548 10 91 00	Containing lead	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8548 10 99 00	Other	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8704 21 10 00	Specially designed for the transport of highly radioactive materials (Euratom)	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8704 22 10 00	Specially designed for the transport of highly radioactive materials (Euratom)	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8704 23 10 00	Specially designed for the transport of highly radioactive materials (Euratom)	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8704 31 10 00	Specially designed for the transport of highly radioactive materials (Euratom)	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8704 32 10 00	Specially designed for the transport of highly radioactive materials (Euratom)	NA	TBT	ME	n.a
8708 70 91 90	Road wheels and parts and accessories thereof, other, wheel centres in star form, cast in one piece, of iron or steel	NA	TBT	ME	n.a

## **ATTACHMENT 10**

## <u>List of Future Legislation Projected to be Drafted by the Administration for</u> <u>Plant Protection, Ministry of Agriculture</u>

- New law on mineral and organic fertilizers, including appropriate regulations, to harmonize with EU directives.
- New law on plant protection for harmonization with the regulations and standards of the EU and to comply with WTO requirements.
- Regulation on the manner and time of carrying out obligatory health check ups and measures for determining the health conditions of agricultural crops for production of seeds and facilities for production of planting materials for perennial agricultural plants during the vegetation period, the list and the allowed percentage of economically harmful plant pests and the form and contents of the certificate on the health condition of crops and facilities.
- Regulation on the requirements which are to be fulfilled by legal entities regarding the equipment and facilities for carrying out obligatory health check ups in the production of seeds and planting materials during the vegetation and before releasing for sale the seeds and planting materials.
- Listing the types of seeds which, before their release for sale or before their use for own production, need to be disinfected, i.e. disinfested.
- Regulation on the manner of destruction of plant protection products that are not safe for use, and used plant protection products packing material.
- Regulation on the requirements which are to be fulfilled by legal entities regarding the equipment, devices and premises for carrying out disinfections and disinfestations of plants and deratizations in the premises for storing, processing and keeping plants and in the means of transport for these plants.
- Regulation on the manner and quantity for taking samples from seeds and planting materials, plants, plant products and plant protection products.
- Order for the areas contaminated by quarantine plant pests.
- Regulation on the manner of carrying out obligatory health check ups of plants and plant products in the areas contaminated by quarantine plant pests to areas which are not contaminated, as well as the contents and shape of the certificate relating to the health condition of plants in the internal turnover.
- Regulation on the manner of carrying out obligatory health check ups of plants and plant products in their circulation across the state border, and the necessary conditions for carrying out the health check ups.
- Regulation on the manner of issuance, the shape and contents of the prescription of plant protection products that are released for retail sale.
- Regulation on the amount, manner and time limits for payment of costs for the procedure for issuance of licenses for releasing plant protection products in the circulation.

Regulation on the amount of compensation for completing the obligatory health check ups of plants, seeds and planting materials before releasing them for the internal circulation from contaminated into non-contaminated areas and for maintaining the health conditions of plants in quarantine facilities and plants under quarantine surveillance.

## **ATTACHMENT 11**

The following explanations apply to all products subject to export licenses listed in the table below:

Reasons for licensing: Protection of essential security interests and defense

WTO justification: Article XXI of GATT 1994

Legal source: Article 10 paragraph 2 of the Law on Foreign Trade (Official

Gazette 31/93 41/93, 78/93, 44/96-40/96, 59/96, 15/97, 13/98,

13/99, 50/99, 82/99)

Tr CC	Description
Tariff no	Description
2612 10 10 00	Uranium ores and pitchblende, and concentrates thereof, with a uranium content of more
2612 10 90 00	than five per cent by weight (Euratom)  Other
2612 10 90 00	Monazite; urano-thorianite and other thorium ores and concentrates, with a thorium content
2012 20 10 00	of more than 20 per cent by weight (Euratom)
2612 20 90 00	Other
2844 10 10 00	Crude; waste and scrap (Euratom)
2844 10 30 00	Worked (Euratom)
2844 10 50 00	Ferro-uranium
2844 10 90 00	
	Other (Euratom) Ferro-uranium
2844 20 25 00	
2844 20 35 00	Other (Euratom)
2844 20 51 00	Ferro-uranium
2844 20 59 00	Other (Euratom)
2844 20 99 00	Other
2844 30 11 00	Cermets
2844 30 19 00	Other
2844 30 51 00	Cermets
2844 30 55 00	Crude, waste and scrap (Euratom)
2844 30 61 00	Bars, rods, angles, shapes and sections, sheets and strips (Euratom)
2844 30 69 00	Other (Euratom)
2844 30 91 00	Of thorium or of uranium depleted in U 235 whether or not mixed together (Euratom), other than thorium salts
2844 30 99 00	Other
2844 40 10 00	Uranium derived form U 233 and its compounds; alloys dispersions (including cermets), ceramic products and mixtures and compounds derived from U 233 or compounds of this product
2844 40 20 00	Artificial radioactive isotopes (Euratom)
2844 40 30 00	Compounds of artificial radioactive isotopes (Euratom)
2844 40 80 00	Other
2844 50 00 00	Spent (irradiated) fuel elements (cartridges) of nuclear reactors (Euratom)
2845 10 00 00	Heavy water (deuterium oxide) (Euratom)
2845 90 10 00	Deuterium and compounds thereof; hydrogen and compounds thereof, enriched in
	deuterium; mixtures and solutions containing these products (Euratom)
2845 90 90 00	Other
2904 20 00 00	Derivatives containing only nitro or only nitroso groups
2920 90 85 10	Nitroglycerin
2920 90 85 20	Other esters of nitric acid
4907 00 30 00	Banknotes
4907 00 90 00	Other
7108 11 00 00	Powder
7108 12 00 00	Other unwrought forms

Tariff no	Description
7108 13 10 00	Bars, rods, wire and sections; plates; sheets and strips of a thickness, excluding any backing,
	exceeding 0.15 mm
7108 13 80 00	Other
7108 20 00 00	Monetary
7109 00 00 00	Base metals or silver, clad with gold, not further worked than semi-manufactured
7118 10 10 00	Of silver
7118 10 90 00	Other
7118 90 00 00	Other
9301 00 00 00	Military weapons, other than revolvers, pistols and the arms of heading No. 9307
9302 00 10 00	9 mm calibre and higher
9302 00 90 00	Other
9303 10 00 00	Muzzle-loading firearms
9303 20 10 00	Single-barrelled, smooth bore
9305 10 00 00	Of revolvers or pistols
9305 90 10 00	For military weapons falling within heading No. 9301
9305 90 90 00	Other
9306 10 00 00	Cartridges for riveting or similar tools or for captive-bolt humane killers and parts thereof
	Shotgun cartridges and parts thereof; air gun pellets:
9306 21 00 00	Cartridges
9306 29 40 00	Cases
9306 29 70 00	Other
9306 30 10 00	For revolvers and pistols falling within heading No. 9302 and for sub-machine-guns falling within heading No. 9301
9306 30 30 00	For military weapons
9306 30 91 00	Centrefire cartridges
9306 30 93 00	Rimfire cartridges
9306 30 98 00	Other
9306 90 10 00	For military purposes
9306 90 90 00	Other
9307 00 00 00	Swords, cutlasses, bayonets, lances and similar arms